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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT
To the Members of Spice Money Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Spice Money Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial siatements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its loss
including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs).
as specified under saction 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year March 31, 2023, These matters were addressad
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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S. N. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
1 Revenue Recognition How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

For the financial year ended 31 March,
2023 the Company has recorded
revenue of Rs. 94,881.93 Lakhs. The
accounting policies  for revenue
recognition are set out in Note 2.4 (h)
and the different revenue streams of
the Company have been disclosed in
Mote 23 to the financial statemenis.

It involves certain key judgements
relating to idenfification of distinct
performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of
the identified performance obligations,
the appropriateness of the basis used
fo measure revenue recognized.
Revenue recognition is susceplible to
the higher risk that the revenue is
recognized when performance
okligation has not been completed.
This was an area of focus for our audit
and the area where significant audit
effort was directed.

Cur audit approach consisted testing of the design
and operating effectiveness of the internal controls
and substantive testing as follows:

- Selected samples of revenue recognized, terms
and conditions of services renderad, and tested the
operating effectiveness of the intermal control,
relating to identification of the distinet performance
obligations and determination of transaction price.
We carried out a combination of procedures
invalving enguiry and observation, re-performance
and inspection of evidence in respect of operation
of these controls,

- Tested the relevant information technology
systems' access and change management controls
relating to contracts and related information used
in recording revenue.

- Selected samples of revenue recognized, terms
and conditions of services rendered, and
performed the following proceduras:

— Read, analyzed and identified the distinct
performance obligations in these services.

- Compared these performance obligations with
that identified and recorded by the Company.

-~ Considered the terms of the commercials fo
determine the transaction price including any
variable consideration to verify the transaction
price used to compute revenue and to test the basis
of estimation of the variable consideration.

— Samples in respect of revenue recorded for time
and material contracts were tested using a
combination of customer acceptances, subsequent
invoicing and historical trend of collections and
disputes.

- Sample of revenues disaggregated by type and
service offerings were tested with the pedformance
obligations specified in the underlying contracis.

— Sample of revenues disaggregated by type and
service offerings were tested with the performance
obligations specified in the underlying contracis.

—  Performed  analytical procedures  for
reasonablenass of revenues disclosed by type and
service offerings.

We found the Company's revenue recognition to be
consistent wilh its accounting policy. We are
satisfied that the Company's revenue has been
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appropriately recognized and disclosure in the
relevant accounting period.

2 Deferred Tax Assets How our audit addressed the key audit matter:
The company has carried deferred tax | We assessed the adequate implementation of the
assets of Rs. 1,039.39 Lakhs as at | policies and controls regarding deferred tax. We
March 31, 2023. The accounting | evaluated the design and implementation of
policies for deferred tax recognition are | controls in respect of recognition and recoverability
set out in Note 2.4 (j) and the breakup | of deferred tax assets. We examined the
of deferred tax have been disclosad in | procedures in place for the deferred tax
Mote 10 to the financial slatements. | calculations for completeness and valuation and
Also refer note no. 32 of financial | audited the related tax computations and estimates
statements. There is significant | in the light of our knowledge of the tax
judgement involved in accounting for | circumstances. We performed an assessment of
taxes as per income tax laws in India. | the major items impacting the Company's tax
This gives rise to complexity and | expense, balances and exposures. In respect of
uncertainty in respect of the calculation | deferred tax assets, we assessed the
of Income taxes, deferred tax positions. | appropriateness of management's assumptions
Due to significance to the financial | and estimates, including the likelihood of
statements as a whole, combined with | generating sufficient future taxable income to
the judgement and estimation required | support deferred tax assets on tax losses carried
to determine their wvalues, the | forward and MAT credit entitlement, which shall be
evaluation of deferred tax assets is | available for utilization in future. We found that tax
considered to be a key audit matter, provision and deferred tax assels are appropriately
recognized and disclosed in the financial
statement.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other infermation
comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performad, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that facl. When we read
the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable
under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respec! to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequale accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgmenis and eslimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
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accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Cormpany or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order te design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumslances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiglity is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial slatements may be influenced, We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
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financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencias in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March
31,2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditer's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-seclion (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A" a statemeant on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the informafion and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper baoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other comprehensive Income,
Statement of change in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act;

{e) On the basis of the written representation received from directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 1o these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B" to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the standalone financial statements:

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts,
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iii. There were no amounts due which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a). The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 52 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities. including foreign entities
("Intermedianes”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b). The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 52 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

(h) The Company has paid/provided for remuneration to its directors in compliance with the
relevant provisions of section 187 of the Act and the remuneration to an executive director is
subject to approval of shareholders.

(i) The dividend declared and paid on Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares by
the company during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act.

(i) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
applicable for the Company with effact from April 1, 2023, and accordingly reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023,

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
irm Reg. No. 302049E

S =
Bimal Kumar Sipani
Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR) i Partner
Dale: May 18, 2023 Membership No. 088926

UDIN: 23088926BGXBAM1560
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Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditor's Report of even date to members of Spice Money
Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Referred
to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date on the other legal and regulatory requirements)

(i) a)

b)

d)

e)

(ii) (@)

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment.

E) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

The Company has a planned programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all its Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified annually.
In our opinion, this pericdicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to size
of the Company and nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, the
Company has performed a physical verification of all of its Property, Plant and Equipment
during the year and no material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

As per records of the Company, the Company did not hold any immovable property as at
March 31, 2023. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(j) (c) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and Intangible
Assets during the year. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or is pending against the Company during the year for holding any Banami
property under the Benami Transaclions (Prohibition) Amendment Act, 2016 and rules
made thereunder. Therefare, provisions of clause 3(i){e) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

Aceording to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the
inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year and in our
opinion, coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on

physical verification of inventories as compared to the book records.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of rupees five crores
from banks on the basis of security of fixed deposits and there is no stipulation to submit
any quarterly returns/ statements with banks. Therefore, provisions of the clause 3(ii)(b) of

the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) Based on the books of account examined by us and according to information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security
ar granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Therefore, provisions
of clause 3iiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(ivi According to information and explanations given by the Company and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has nol granted any loan, made any investments
and given any guarantee or security under section 185 and 186 of the Act during the year.
Therefore, provisions of the clause 3{iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to be deposits
covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) during the year. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(viy The maintenance of cost records prescribed under the section 148 (1) of the Act read with
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 was not applicable on the Company.
Therefore, provisions of clause 3({vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us, the Company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of
excise, Value Added tax, Cess and other statutory dues as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. There were no undisputed outstanding statutory dues as at the year-end for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) on account of any
dispute remain unpaid.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which
have not been recorded in the books of account but have been surrendered or disclosed as
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.

(ix) (a)The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and in payment of interest
thereon to any lender during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. Therefore,
the provisions of clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{c) Based on the books of account examined by us, no term loans were obtained during the
year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis during the year have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has nol taken
any funds from any enfity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries. The Company has no associates or joint ventures. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts
examined by us, the Company has not raised any loan during the year on pledge of
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securities held in its subsidiaries. The Company has no associates or joint ventures.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company

(x)
(a) During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer {including debt instruments) or term loan. Therefore, provisions of clause
3(ix)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{b) The company has not received call money for which call made during the year on Class B
equity shares during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(xi)} (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and considering the principles of materiality
outlinad in Standards on Auditing, for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company noticed or
reported during the year nor have we been informed of any such case by the management
during the course of the audit.

(b) According o the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c} According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company,

(i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not

applicable 1o the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, and as per
records of the Company examined by us, transaclions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
details for the same have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations given to us and our audit procedure, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) WWe have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

{xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them
as referred to in section 192 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the
Qrder are not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(c) In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as definad in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d)  According to the representations given by the management, there is one CIC as part of the
Group.

(vii) The Company has not incurred cash loss during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(xvii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{oviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditor during the year. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has no unspent amount relating to CSR activities, which is required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302049E
Bimal Kumar Sipani
Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR} Partner
Date: May 18, 2023 Membership No. 088926

UDIN: 23088926BGXBAM1560
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Annexure B to Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Spice Money
Limited on the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended on March 31, 2023 (refer
to in paragraph 2(f) of our report on other legal and regulatory requirements)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Spice
Money Limited (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over the financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibiliies include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporling (the
"Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to as audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements of and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effactively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included cbilaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and cperating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal; financial control with reference to financial
slatements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
asseis of the Company ; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only
in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the Company ; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect cn the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over the financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Reg. No. 302049

e
Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner

Membership No. 088926
UDIN: 23068926BGXBAM1560

Flace: Noida (Delhi-NCR)
Date: May 18, 2023
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Spice Mency Limited (CIN-UTI900 DL MN00PLC]0498%)

Regd off- 612, 6th Floor,IN.F Tower Jasols District cenive, New Delki - 110023
MNobes b the Minancial statemenis as at and for the vear endeld 31 March 2023
[Rs. in Lakhs snless otherwise stased)

1. Reporting Entity

Space Money Limited (“the Compnny™) isa public Company demiciled in Indin and is incorporated wader the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in Indin and having
registered office al 622, Sth Floar, DLF Tower, Jasala District centre, Mew Delhi - 110025,

Spice Money i me of Indin's largest tech-sabled Hyper Lecal Paviments Nework offering varioms services like Cssh Doposit, Cagh Withdmwsd, Batance Inquiry, Bl
Payenents, Andhanr Enabled Services, Air Time Recharpe. POS Services. Radlwag Ticketing Services. Cach Manapement Services et through ite snthorized agens.

L. Significant accouniing pulicics

L1 Status of Compliance:-

The financial satenants of the Company have been prepared in sccordance with Indian Accounting Stanchrds (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read with Companies [Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended tme 1o time.

Accousing Folicies bave been consstently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is sestially adoped or a revision o an existing accountmg stadard reqused a change
i e accousting policy hithera m ise.

The Board of [erectors approved the financil sttements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and mathorised for issue on May 18, 2023, However. the shasebolders of the
Company have fhe power to amesd the Firancinl Sttements afler the issue.

1.2 Rais of preparation

The financial statemests have been prepared encer the histoncal cost convestion en scemial bagis axcapt for the fallowings

- Maom-current harrewnps se insially measared a1 faie valoe.

- Diefined benefit plans aad Oiber long-tenm enployee berefits are memsured at fair value @ each reponing date,

~Share based pmanenss are initially measuwred st fair vake

Fair vathet i the price that would be recaved 10 sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a lability in an orderly wamsaction between maske participants & the measwement date,
regardless of whether that price ix directly ohservable or estimated using ssother vahasion bechnigue. In estimating the fair velse of an asset or & Bability, the: Company ks
mdo account the characteristics of the asset or Nability, il market paticipants would tike those clarscteristics into account when pricing the assel or liasbiliny ot the mesirement
date. Fair vahss for meassrement anclor disclosare pusposes in these Ginancial statzments s determined an such a bass, except fon keasing warsactions thit are. within the scope
of Ind AS 116 - Lenses, and messuremends that have some similanitics to fiir value but are not fair vahse, such as net realisable value i Ind A% 2 = Inventories o value in nse
in fnd AS 36 < Inpaimoent of Assets

1.3 Functhonal anil prewentation currency
These financal statements are preserted in Indian Natianal Rispee (*#'), which is the Company's fimctionsl cormemey, Al smounts have been mousded to the nepere Lakla (¥
00,000, except when mberwise indicnsed

LA Summary of Significant Accomating Palicses
The significaat sccourking policies apphed by the Uompary i the prepartion of o5 linancial statzments ae hsted below, Such sccountisg policies have been applisd
consistent’y 1o all the penods presentad in hese financial @ntements, inbess otherwise indicabed.

A, Current versus non-current classification
The Company presenis assess and Habslicies in the balance sheet based on current! son-cwrment classification, An asset w cassified as curmren: when it is:

a Expected (o be realised or imended 1o be sold or consumed in nommal operating <vde;

I Held prmarily for the pipsose of Eackng

¢ Expected to be realised within twehve monthe after the reporting perod; or

d Cash or cash equivalent unless restricied from being sxchanged or tsed to settle n ability Bor ot least twodve months afler the reparting peried,
Al other msets are classified as non-cument.

A linbality is classified as current when:

. lves expected (o be setied in nonmal opemting cve;

b Itis held primarily for fhe purpose of rading;

© Itis due o be setled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o There is no urconditional right o defer the setfement of the liability for at least swelve monibis alker the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilitizs 25 noo-corment.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as mon-ciment assets and nos-current lakilities respectively.

The operating cycle is (he time hetwesn the scquisition of asssts for processing and thesr realisation in cash smd eash equivalents, The Company has ideatified twelve manths as
it opemting cycle

B Property, plant, nad equipment

Progeny, plant md equipment ane stated ol cost of acouisition or construction bess scoumaled deprecistion and imanirment, ifany, For this purposs, cost includes deemed
cost which represents the cammying value of propery, plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2015 measured s per e previcus Generally Accepted Accounting
Primciples (GAAP). Cost inchudes all direct costs mnd expendilures mcurred 10 bring the nsset 10 its working condition and location for it intended wse. Borowing costs
incurred during the period of constnsction ks capitalissd as pant of cost of qualifring asset,

An e of progeerty. plant and equipment is recognied as an asset if it is probable that figire econmmic henefite aseociated with the fem will fow i the Company and e cos
can be mensured reliobly. This recognition principle is applied te costs mcocred initially to acquire s iteny of property, plamt and equipment and alss to costs incumed
subsequendy 1o add to, replace part of All ather repair and maistenance cods, mcluding regular servicing, ane recognised in the ssatement of profit and boss as incarred, When
i replacement occurs, the carmying value of the replaced pant is desecopnised. Where an flem of property. plant and equipment camgrises mjor comporents having differen)
uselinl lves, thess conpoments are ncemmied for 45 separsie ems.

The: gain or kess arising on dispossl of an sem of property, plant and equipment is determined as the diference batween sl proceeds and corrying velue of such iten, asd i
recognised m the cmement of profin smd lose.

€. Intanghble assses . .
Iraangible asseis are sated a cost of aoquisition or consmction kess accumulnted noniEation and spaiomet, if any. For this porgose, cos incldes deemed cost which
represents the carrying value of inangible assets recognised & at 1at April, 2015 measured as per the previous Genemlly Accepied Acoousting Principhes (GAAPY. Intangible
assels purchased are mensured at cost as at the dive of acquisition, as spphcable, less accanmilsbed amonisation and acoamubsted impsrment, i any.




Spdee Momey Limited (C0N - LTI I000PLC 1 0498%)

Red off- 622, 6 Floor, M Tower Jassls Disirict centre, Mew Delli - 110025
Metes to the Minnaclal statements as &€ and far the vear eoded 31 Varch 2028
(M i Lokhs anless atherwise stated )

. Depreciation and smortiatios of prapeety, past sml eqipment and intsngible asets

Deprecistion on il ssels commences from the dates the assets are ivailable for ther mbendzd use and are speead over their estimated usefid economic lives. or. in the case of
leased pssels, over e lease penod or estimaged wsefid il whichever i3 less. The estimved uschil Bves of assas and resickial values sre regularly reviewsd and, when
IEESIATY, me nevited

Dhepseciation is provided on sraight line meshod using B rates arrived ot on the basis of estimated usefial Hves given in Schedule 11 of ihe Comnpanics Act, 3013 Extimated
usedial life (vears)

Malure Life of Assets a8 per Schodule 11

1+t years | Lawer af period of kase

Luasuhold lmprovements : term and estimated asefl life of
smets)

Dt Proscassing Machines -

Serers 5 years
Compubers J";ﬂ"
- Fuarniture mnd Fiitirgs 7 years
- {iffice Equipmest jexchuding mobile andsss) 3 wrears
- Mobibe Handets 3 years
Paymaent Deviess (vorefun) {Refer Note no_ 51) | year
Payient Devices [(her than Morefin) 3 yoars
Vehocles 8 yomrs

Assets value up to 230400 are fally deprecaated in the year of acquisitian.

The estimcated useful life of am identifiable intamgisle asset is based on 8 mumber of fictors including the effcts of ohealesemce, demand, competiion, and other canemic
factors (such as the stabdity of the industry. and keown technobgical advances), and ihe level af mambernance evpenditares. required 1 obtain the expected Finre eash flows
froam the asset.

Intemphle awets are smaorteed over their respective individual edtnmated wefl lves on n stmight-line hasis, fom the date that fsey are available for use. In case of compubes
saftware, the Campany bas estimated woefil life of five vors or less.

Imtangible asseis Estimasted wseful life
iCiffice) 3 Yean

(Camnputer software
Coinputer sollwarne | 5 Years
(b vt s L —

E. Barrowisg Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of in asset st necessarily takes o substantial period of Sme to et ready for ies inended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the se All other horrowing costs are sxpensed in the period in which they cceur, Borrowing costs conss of imierest and ol
costs that an enlity incirs in cornection with e homowing of fands. Barrowing cost also includes exchange differarces to the exient regarded oo an adjustment 1o the
bommewing cosis

Ancillary costs incured n comnection with the amngemest of bomowings are adjastad with the proceeds of the bomowings.

F. Impairment of non-financial g

The Company assesscs, ol cach reporting date, whether there &5 an indication hat an asset may be inpained, (Fany indication exists, or when annusl Impirment iesting lie s
mset is required, the Company csiimales the ssset’s recoverabls amounl. An asset’s vecoversble smount is the higher of am atses or cash-gemerating uedt's (CGU) far vabue
lesa coots of disposal mad its vahie i use. Rocoverable ameunt i devenmined o an individoal asser, upbess the sset does nol generate cash indlows ha are largsedy indcpendent
af those from other nssets or groups of macts. Wha the canying amount of an sssel of CGU exceads i recoverable amoant tbe msd 13 consdened impaired and is writlen
dhown o 1k recoversbl: amouni,

In assesing vabue in use. the estimated fimure cadh flows we discounted 10 ther present value using n pre-tax dscount rate thae reflects cument markel sssessments of the lime
watlue of monzy wnd the rks specific to the asset In determining fir value less costs of dispesal, recent marser tramisctians are ke into 8, 17 =0 such foms can
b idemtifizd, an appropeiate valuation model is used. These calouations are cormbaraied by valustion muliples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or oihes
available fir vahee indicators,

Impainvent hisses of cominuing opemnions, inchiling inpime sn ovenories, are recognised in the starement of profit and lass.

For assets an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether these & mn indication (ht previously recopaised mpairment losses o longer exia or have
decremsed. [ such mvdicmion exists, the Company estimaes the aset’s o CGL's recovershle amaun, A previously recognised impairmient loss is reversed only if there has
been a changs in the sssumptions used 10 determine the asset”s recaverable amownt since the last impairnent bas was recognised. The reversal is liméted so that the camying
anount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amiount, nor exceed the carrying amount thal wouls have been determinsd. net of deprecistion, had no impaimnent ks
been recopnised for the nsset in pror years. Such reversal & recogrised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

G Inveniaries

Invesvionies ane valued ag Follows:

Invemmionies e walued at ower of cos and net realisalile value,

Cuosts incurred in beinging each product w s present kocation and condition are accounted for as fdlows:

Traded goods: cos includes cost of purchase and other costs, nes of G5 1 Input Creds, mesrmed n bringg the invertonies 1o their peesent location and conditica. Cosl s
detennined oo FIFC Basis.

Mt realisalie valoe is the estimaned sclling price o the eodinary course of business, less the estimaled cons necessary tomake the ssle.

Prowision for cost of obsolescence nwd other apticpated losses, wherever considered necessary, ane recopnsed in the books of aocount,
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H. Revimme Recognition

Sale of Gosds

The Conypany recognizes ievenue o iansacion price when il satisfics o performance obligation in sccordance with the provisioss of conmct with the customer Revemie
loweards sbistuction of a perfommance oidigation is messwed ot the smoust of ransaction pric: allocated 1 thal performance obligation. This is scbleved when

«[ffective conirol af goods along with signifizant risks axd rewards of ownarship has been transfemed to customer;

«[the amount of revenue can be measured relmbly;

*[it is probable that the economic beefits nssociated with the transacsion will flow 1o the Company; and

+[He costs incurred of te be incusred in respect of the rapsaction can be nseasured relisbly,

Transaction price sepresents net value of poods mad services providad 10 customers afler deducting fior certnin incentives and retums induding. bat st limised 1o discosnts,
volwme rebacs, et The Company considers shippmg md handling activities a8 costs te flfil the promise 1o wamsiir the telated prodacts and the cusiomer pmaents for
shipping ard hendling costs are recoeded as a component of revenie.

Ingomie fram serviees

Rovonue Srom fntech serviees such as domestic money wansfior {OMT), AEPS, BBPS, CMS, Top sp recharges e, are recogatasl when e services are sciully rendered o
veal time basis,

Imierest inconae

Inferest ipcome frem a Smncial asset i secognised] when i is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the Company and the umsunt of iscome can bo ascasured
relighly. Pateredt income is sccrued on & time proprticnale bass, by reference to the principa sutstanding and a0 the effcctive mberest rete applicable, which is the rate et
eonetly discounts estivunted futare cash reecipts through the expected kifc ofthe financial asset o that gssefs il caryisg amonl o1 initial recognition,

Dvuilends

Daviclend income is recopnised when the compars’s night %o receive dividend is esmblishad

Goods and senvice s (G5T) on shave, whenever applicable, is not reodved by the Company on its ewn accoust. Bsther, it 5 tax collecied on value added 1o the poods and
services by the Company on behalf of the povernment. Accordingly, # is excluded from revenue.

I Fureign curremcles

Tramsactions in foeeimn cumencies ave recondad by the Company at their respeciive fimctiosal cumency s the exchange rates prevailing o the date of the trmsaction firg
ouakifics. fisr recognition, At the reparting date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated i foreign comency are resmied at the exchanpe eivs prevaibng

Excharge differences arising on sestlement or tranglation of mosstary iems are recojmised m the Stalement of Profit & Less with the sxcopion of the fellowing:

- Eschange differesces on foreign cumency bormwings iscluded m the borrowing cost when they are regarded a5 mn adjustment io inberest costs on those Toreipm curmency
horowings;

Non-momctary itenis that ars measuned &t hisorical cost m o foreign currency are tnskaed usingg the evchange mios at the dse of initial Famactions, Mon-mmemry items
mensure o fmr vabue 1 n foreign custeney sre translated wsing the exchange rates at the date whea the fxir vabie [ detenmined.

A Income Taxes

Currenl ax
Curreens e aseete and Habilities are measured at the amownt expected 10 be recoverad from or paid o the taxasion muthoritics. The 1 rates and s s wsed 1o compate the

4 f

il are thogs that are | or wely d, nt the repaiting dsic.

Current twe relating to stems recogyiseed outsice satement of profit o loss is recopnised owside statenent of profit o s (xither o other cmprebesive income o b oquity)
Curnent tae lems we recognised in corelation to the enderlying transaction either in OCT or directly in sqelty. Manag penodically cval posiions when (i (s L4
retums with respect o sitsations in which spplicable tax regulations are sshjoct to mtcrpretotion ond estsbiahes previson where sppoprise.

Curment s assots is offset ngninst ousrent tax Babilities if, and oaly i, o kepally onfarcenble right ciss 1o set offibe recopnised smounts and there b an inesion either 1 seatle
on aivel baesis, of toreeling the msct ond setile the linhility simslian cously,

Defirrod fax is providzd using the [iabisty method on temporary differences betwen e tax beses of assets and liabilities and their carming amoonts fsr fnancial reponing
parposes i ke niponing date,

Uefrmed nx assets ane recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of vnssed tax credits and amy unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recigmised b the cxieat faf if is probable tha taxable profit will be svilable agninst which fie deductible Emporary differences, and the camy forward of mused tax credits
and uiwised fx lisses can be utibised, Defermed tax Habslities are generally recogmiszd for nll the tacable temporary differences.

The: camywag amiount of deferred t assels 15 reviewed ai cach repontimg date and reduced 10 the extent that it i3 no longer probabie dant sufficien wable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferved tan asset to be wtilised. Unrecognised deferred ta assets ane re-assessed an ench reporting date ind ane recognised 1o the ekt thal
it has becoave probable that e tasable profts will alow the deforred tax ssset (o be recoverad,

Ueterred tax assets and lahilites are mesured af the tax mbes that e expected 1o apply in the year when the asset is realissd or the liability = setled, based on tex mies (md
fax Bows) that v been enacted or substantively enscted af the nporting date.

Dieferred tax relafing fe items recognised outside stnement of profi or boss is recognised outside statement of profit o loss (ether i other comprehomsive incoame or in equity)
Deferred tax items are recogaised in comelation to the waderhying ransaction esthes in OCT er directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets ane deferred v habilities are offset iT s lepally enforceable right exists o set off cument tax assets againat cusvent tax lishikities and the defimed taves relate
b the same taxable entity and the sune taxation asthariny,

MEAT credit is recopnised as an asset, whenever here & convineing evidence that the Company will pry sonmal income ax durisp the specified period In the yenr in which
the Minimum Abernatve tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said aseet is ereated by way of o credit o e ststemest of profin sd loss and
shown s Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews the cme af each halance sheet dase and wiites down the carmving amoant of Defemed Tax Assets 10 tie exter there is no
longzer convincing evidence (o the effect that the Compamy will pay asomal lecome Tax during the specilied period.




Spice Maney Limited o0 1N 7290000 2009810 10495%)

Rl 0fF- 822, ith Floar, DLF Tower Jasals Disteiel conire, Mew Delki - 110025
Maibes o the Financial statements as st and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(R i Lakhs unless ofherwise itaded)

K. Bawloyes henediis
Ehereicrm bepefls

The undiscourted amount of shoni-em enployee benefits expecied 1o be paid i exchange for the servce rendered by empbavess are recogiised during the period when the

emploves renclers the services.

Dfivind eoudribufivn plans
Retiranent benefit in the farm of provident fimd is 0 defmed contribation scheime. The Conpany s ne obdigation, ogher than the contribistion payable to e povideat fund.
The Cotepany tecopnizes contribution payable 1o the provident fund scheme and State Plans namely Emplovees’ Staie Insarasce Fund, 2 w0 expense, when an emphyee
renders the relmed service.
Compary"s contribition to Providest Fund is made in accordance with the Statute, and are recognised s an expense when emphoyvees have sendered servicas entitlisg them o
i contribaion,

Befined benefits plnss
Ihe Company operates a delined benetit grtity plan o (nda, whech requares conmibutions fo be made to o separalely adminstered fand Granity is o defined benelit
ahlgntion,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined berselit plan is desermined wsing the projecied unit credit method by actarial vthier at each reporting date. In respect of pos-
refirement benefit re-mexsarements oonpeisisg of actianisl gains and losses, the effect of e nsset ceiling, exclediag amounts moheded in net inferest on the net defined benebit
ability and the returm o plas asseis, ane recognised immediaiely in the baknce sheet with 0 comesponding debit o ceedit 1o retained carmngs through OCT in the pericd i
which they occar. Re-measurements are mot reclassified o ststement of profie o los in subsequent periods.

Past service cosl is recognised as o expense when the plan amerdiment o curtailinent occurs or when any related resimachining costs or tenminaion benefits are recopmised,
whichever is earlier.

Diber lnng-term benefits
Accumulated feave, which is expecied 10 be uilized withis the nes twelve months, & ireated as short-lerm employee benefil The Company mensires e expected cost of mich
absences ns the additionnl amount bl 0 expects i pay a5 4 sesull af e umised entitlement that has accumuleied ai the balasce shee) date. Achuarial mins loases on fhe
coanpensaied absences are immediately taken to e stalemeit of profil and kss and are sl defemed.

L. Liases
Company i o esiee

The Company nssesses i @ contract = or condaing o beme o inception off the contrmct. A contrect is, or confass, # kease i the conttaet comveys (e tight 1o comtrol the wse of an
idemti Fid Rsset Tor a pericdd time ia exchange Sr comsidenation,

The Compary secogmizes a right-ol-use asset and 1 bease lishility o the conmencement date, except for shorttenm leases of iwelve moatls o less and leases for which the
enclerlying asset is of low value, which are expensed in the statement of operations on & straighi-hne basis over e lease lemm.

Tlu.-hzI-h'liy'-iriil:ﬂymunr!nlhu;rmnlumrl}uhmmmhmmmnﬁummumdnj-mﬂumghnmmmp&hhuhs
le-r or, rfrur_ﬂ;dl-m-nlh the incremental borowing rife specific (o the Company, term and cumency of the contrict, Lense peyments can inclusde fined payerienits,

L wywients th depend on an index o gate kiown al e commencoment date, os well as any exension o puschase options, i e Company s reasonnbly cenain 1o
uul:hm;memwuqummummmmm«mmnmmwwummh
related nplvi-af-use asset when there is a change m fibune kease paymests in case of renegolation, changes of an index or rte 01 in cate of reassesments af options.

The right-ofuse asset comprises, af inception, the mnitial lease Hability, any inftind direct costs md, when applicable, ihe abligations 10 refiarsish the asset, less any meentives
prunted by the lessors. The right-of-use ssse is sohsequendly deprecinted, on a sraight-line badis, over dhe leasa s, if the kease transfers the ownership of the waderlying ssee
1o the Company st the encl of the lease term or, if the cost of the ight-ofase ssset reflects that the lessor will exercise & purchase option, over the estnmted el ik of the
underlying sser. other are also subject (o testng for impaineent ifihers ia an indicalor for impairment, Vasisble leese prymests sl included in the messuomen of the lease
linbdlitics are expersed to the Sttement of Profit & Loss in the period in which the ovenis or conditivns which rigger hose paymmts oot

Lompany i lessor
Lenses in which the Company does pot ransfer substastially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an ssset sre clmsified s aperating basss. Rental income From operating
lease shall not be siraight-lined, if escalation i rentals is in lme with expecied inflationany cout. iniial direct costs incuned in negotiating mnd amanging s operating bese are
adcle 8 the carmyimg smaunt of the leased neset and recopivizsd ower the lease s on the e bosis 2 renial income.

Contingent rentals are recognised as revene in the period in which they e oamod.

AL Provisions, contiagent lkabilities and contisgent asseis
Huﬂahsﬂmﬂ\dﬂmubhmwunmﬂm‘lpﬂhn-mnmm 1o an outflow of ccenomit resoarces and amounts can be estimated reliably
Timung or amount of the outfow sy @ill be uncerin, A present obligation arises when there &5 o presesce of a legsl or congmuctive commitment that has resulted from pas
events, for exarple, legal dispates or onerous contracts. Provisions are nol recopnised for fiture operating bosses.

Provisions are mensured at the estmsted expendituee required § seitl: the present abligation, bused on (ke most reliable evidence availible at the repenisg date, incladng the
risks arel encertainiies associated with the present obligatson. Provisions ane discomnted o their present values, where the time vadue of morey is maserial.

Any reimbursement that the Compary can be vinually certain 1o collect from o third party with respect b the sbligation is recognissd as o sperate pisel, However, this psses
may not excesd the mmount of the related provision,

Al provisions ane reviewed al eoch reporting date and sdjested 1o reflect the current best estimate,
ln those cises whiere the oflow of economic resonrces a5 a resull of present obligitions is considered improbabde or remoe, mo lishility iz recopnised
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Camtingent lability is discbosed for:

= [Pessikle oblgations which will be confirmed anky by Fature events not wholly withan the centrol of the Company or

= Present cbligation: anising from past evenls where it is ol probable fint an caeflew of resources will be required o setile the obligation o o seliable ctimate of the amou o
the obligaticn canaot be mide.

Clonstingen asscts are not recognised. Howsver, when inflow of econvenic beiefits is protialrle, related asset is dischosed.

M. Earnings per share

Einiic camivgs per eouity shane is computed by dividing act profil afer tax by the weighted average nmcher of equity shares sutstanding during the year, Diluted earmngs per
equty share is computed by dividing adjusied net profic after tax by the agprepnie of sedghted svenpe number of ssuity duses and dilutive potentinl equity shases during the
Ve,

[, Cash and cash equivalents
Cashh and canh squivalont in the balence sheet comprise msh af hanks and on hisd, cheques on hand and slori-temn deposits with @ orignal sty of tree momihs or less,
which are sebiject i insignilicant risk of changes i vaiue,

For the parposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equevakents is ns defined sbove, net of outstanding bask overdmits, In the babmsce shect, bark sverdmils e
chown withia borrowings in cusverst liabilities.

P Fair valoe mensaronenit

I desermiming the fhir wnbee of ks nancial msruments, the Company uses 3 variety of methods and assumipions (el are based on macke conditions and rigks exiging o
intial recognition sl at sach reportiag date. The methods used to determine fir valie mciids discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quates.
Al methods of assessing fair valoe result in pereral approximation of vale, and such valse may never actually be realized For Snancial sssets and lisblitizs maturing within
one year from the Balanee Sheet date and which ane not carried ot fair value, the camyving anomes approxmate B value due 1 the shon matrity of tbese imstruments.

Fair vabue i the price that woald be received to sefl an asset or paid 10 wansfir a Hability in an ordedy iransaction between marke! panticipants sl the messyrement date,
vegardiess af whether that price is directly ohservable or sstimated using asotier valuation teclmique In essimating ihe fiir value of an asest or a liability, the Compary tkes
i aceou the characteristics of the asset or linbdliy, if mnrke perticipant wonlk] take those charactenistics ino account whes pricing il st or Babilisy @ the mesuwenen
dnde

In wdddition, for finarciel reporting purpeses, Tair value we calegoriced imio Level |, 2 er 3 based on ihe degree o which the inputs 1o the fair valug
meeaswemenis are phsereable mnd che significance off the ispers o e fir value maasurement in i entirety, which are descnibed = Tollows

Level | iopuss ane quctes prices foet assed value (umadjusted ) in sciive markzes for identical assets or liabilities that the company can sccess at e menserement date;
Level 2 inputs are mypats. other than quoted prices (unadjusted) inchuded within Level |, that are observabie: for ihe asset or Esbility, either disectly or indirscily: and
Lewel 3 inguts awe unchservable inputs far the asset or liahility,

Q. Segment reporting

Oparating seg are ey 'innm-nuw.nlmtnﬂﬂnimmﬂmlh;hhlkﬁk[“gtdﬂnm_'[mmxamﬂmrmmmm
ierifiedl ns beiny the chicl operaing decizion maker by Bie Mmnagement of the Company, The Company opermes in 4 single eperating sepment and geopraphical sepment,

. Finarcial insirumeats

Initisl recogaition anild meaguremeo
Finmcal assets and Enancial Babilisies are recognized when the Company becomes 2 party 1o the eontractusl provisions of the financinl imstrment. Financizl instnument
{encept trade receivables) are messwred intiafy ot fir vabue adjusted for (ransactioe costs, exeept for those carmied 9t fair value through profit or loss, Trade receivables are
messuresd af their marsaction price wnless it containg a sprificant finascing component i sccordance with Ind AS 115 for pricing sdistmients embeddad in the contmct
Subsequent measurermen: of lnania’ assets and financial labilites is described below:

Subsoquest measunement

L Fimanclal pssets curried af smoriised cest
A financial asset |5 messured Al the amortised oo, if both the following conditions me met:

*  [The asset is held within o business model whose objective is 1o hold sssets fir collecting coneactual cash flows, and
+ Conmractusl terms of the ssset grve nse on specified dases 1o cash flows that are solely parments of principal nad interest (SPPI) on the principal ssount oustanding
After imitial measurement, such fisancial assets are subsequently mensmed o amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed.

i lsvestmenis in equity imdramens

I enis m equity | ents. whese the Company has opted 10 dassify such instraments ot fir valise through other comprebensive imcome (FYOCT) are messused at fair
vahse throsgh other comprehessive incame. There is no recyeling of the mmounts from OCT to PEL, even on sbe of investmml However, the Company may transfer the
canuilafive pain o loss within equity. Dividends oo such in te wre rocoprised in profit or loss unbess the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of he
v

il Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint venmre

Tnvesten: in ssbsidiavics, msocises s join veavere ore measured initially o coses Subsequent b inidl recogmition, investment in subsidiaries, sssociates and joint venhme
ave staiod an ot bevs impaivment boss, iCay,

Investoien in subsiimics, msocises and join veniure are derecognised wisen they sre sold or ansfemed. The diffensnee between the nel procesds o sales md the corrving
st of the investsent s recognized in stement of prafit and kss i the ver of derecognition
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v, Financial assets al Bir valwe throsgh Profit & Loss (FYTPL)

Finaneial masets, which docs mat mest the crileria for calegonzition as o izeel coest o s FVOC], are elmsalied ne a FYTPL.
Finsneial sssets included within e FVTPL category are measured ot fuir value with all changes recogaized in the Satement of Profi & Loss,

8. Campoand Fimsncal Instrement

The component parts of cempound mstruments sssed by the Compaey me clasaificd scperaicly as financinl labittes el eguity in accordance with the sulsimsce of (be
contrachml arvangement and the definitions of a laancinl lalbdlicy and an cquiry insnment. Comversion option it will be serded by the exchange of a froed amosit of cash or
ancther finmncial st for 8 fixed number of the Company s own equey mnstrumests is an equity mstrament,

At the date of issue, the fair valie of the lability component is estanated using the prevailing market inserest rae for simclar no-comvertible insinements. This amount i
recorded as & [ability or an amaortised cost basis using the effective imterest method until eatinguished upan in or it the i *u maturity duie.

The comverson option classificd as equity is descrmined by dediscting the smoust of the linbility componest from e fir value of the composnd inserument s a whole, The
coarversion opstion clissifled as oguity will nemaim in equiry unall the eomversion aption is exercisedd, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will 5¢ mnsiarned s other
compiment of equaty. When the conversion option romans unexercesed o the mnhrity ot of the convertible note, the balince recognised i equity will be mansferved o
retained eamings. Mo gain or ks is recognised i profit or less upon conversion or expiration of e comverson option

T. Imspalrment of Rrancisl asseis

n secordance with lsd AS 109, the Compary spphes expected credit loss (ECL) model for mensarement snd recognition of impoinment lets for Grancinl assess, ECL s the
weighied-average of difference between all coniencmial el Rows that are due to the Company in nocordance with the contract and all the cash Bows that the Company expecs
o receive, discounted ot fhe original effectiva intarest sate, with the rospective risks of default occurring @ the weights. When cstimating the cash flows, e Company
considers

LAl comtractual teima of the Onanial assces (ocluding prepayamt s caeusion) vver te expecied lif of the nset,
+DCash Aows from the sale of collaternl held o other credit enlascemcnes. dhat sne intogral 1o the contractial serms:

i} Trade reccivables:
In respect of rade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires menssrement of loss allowance ot an amount egud io ifetime
expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that resslt fram all possible deflt evenis over the expected life of 3 Gnancial i

i} Oher Nnanclal psses:

In respect of ts other firancial assets, the Company assesses iNibe cradic nisk on those financial assets his increased significanly since inimal recognibor. 1F the aedit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, e Company measrn:s e los allowance at an amoust equal to | 2-month expecied credit losses, eseat m amount equal i
the lifisime expecied oedil losses

When makieg his asmessment, he Company wees the caange in the risk of a Gefault occarring over the expecied life of the Bnancial assel. To make that assessment, the
Compeny comparcs the sk of a defud occurring on the fisancial azset as ol the balance sheet date with the ruk of a delill occuring on e finencial asset as at B dase of
fnitial recogrition and consders sensonabile and supportaléle mfomntion, that is aveilable without undue cost or efforl, that is indicative of significant increnses in credit risk
since inftial recognithon. The Company sssemzs hal the ceedi risk on a Enancial asset has not increased sgificantly since initial recogrition f the Bnancial asset is daermined
o luawe bow credin risk anihe balarce sheet dase,

§i) De-revognition of financial assets:
A finnscdsl ssset i6 primanily do-racognised when the contractual rights oo receive cash fows from the niset luve expirad or the Compay s massfored its vights o receive

coah flows Fram the nsaet,
iv) Nos-derivative Anancisl liabilities

Subsequent menswrensent: Subseguent v initeal recopnition, all derivative financial linkslines are measired st amortised sost using the offective nferest method
De-rocogaition of Muancial labilities: A faancial liability is desecogized when the obligason ander il Fability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an exiging
Enancial knbility is replaced by ancther from e same kender on substantially cifferent terms o (he terms of an existing habahty ane sebstutinlly modified, such an exchange or
mudification 15 wremed as the de-recopnition of the original liability and the recognition af a new Kability. The difference in the respective carmying smeunts i recogmised i the
statement of profit or loss.

Ofsetting of fnancial inshrumeats: Financial nssets andd fnancisl Eabilisies are offee, snd the net is reposted] in the balance ghizet if thevs iz cumantly exforceabls
begal right to offeet the recognised amousts and there is on infention (o seitle on o et basis, 1o realise the nssets and seitle the liabibtics simbnacousty,

U Kight of Use (RO ) Asmets
The ROL! asscts compize e iniial measunanent of e covespombng lease lEability, lesse payments made 8 or befose e commencemen day and any imitial divec! costs

They are sibsequently measured o cost bess sceunulated deprecantion and imprment bosses.
Whenever the company incurs an obligation for costs 1o dismantie and ramove o lessed asset, restore (he sile on which it is located or restore the underlving aset 1o the

cansdition required by the lenmy and condition: of the lease, 8 provision is recoymised and messured under bnd AS 37- Prosisions, Contingont Linhilities and Contingest Assein
T costs are included in the related night-of-use asset,
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RO assets are deprecizted over the shorter perod of the lease senm and useful B of the wndehang asset 15 the company is reasonaldy certain 1o exercise a muichase oqpion,
the night-af-use aset 15 deprecinted over the underlving asset’s wseful Lile. 'The depreciation stars at tse commencement date of the lease
The RO ascts ars prescnied ns 4 separats line in the Balance Sheet and details of sssets ave given ROL sute uider “Notes Raming pan of the Finaocial Staerment™,

The Company applies Il AS 36- lmpaimeent of Assets to determine whether 8 right-of-use st is impaired and acommts for smy identified imparment bes ae per i
socounting polesy o “preperty, phint and equpment’.

Asa peactical expedient, lnd AS |16 permsits 3 lessee not 1o separate pon-deise componmts whes bifurcation of the pevments 15 not svailabde between the two compenents, and
mstend accoant for sy kass aud sssxcisted non-kease components is a angle srangement. The Company has used this practical expadient

Extension and rermination optices are included in muny of the keases, In determising the case wrm the menagoment considers oll facts avd circumstances tial ccaks &
ECCYHHIIC incelive 1o exerciee an exiension aption, or nol exercise a ienmination option,

V. Share-based payments

The compasy recognises oompensaton expense relating o share-based panment in statemen: of profic aed loss using Gér value in sccerdace with Ind AS 102, "Share-based
Payment™

“The Company intally messurcs the cost of cquity-scibed tansactions with employess using Black and Scholes model o deamiog e Gin valie of the Tabdity incumed,
Estimating far value for share-based paymen! trnscsons requines detemanasion of il mos: approjsiate valuatsen model, which 15 depesdent on the temns and conditioss of
thee grant. Vesting conditions, ather than masket conditions Le. perfarmance based condition ore pot takes o aceoant when essmating the fr valee, This estimate also
requires determinmtion of the most appropriate inpus i the valustion model inclading the axpected life of the share option, voltility and dividend yicld ond mnking
assunnepiions aleul dun. The mssumptions and models used for estioneting Qi valee o share-basedd peymrent ransactions are disclossd m nose 39,

W, Business Cambina tion unider Cimmon Contrsl
Common coatrol busness combmation memns a business combination invelving entities or businesses m which all the consbining entities or basinesses ae ultimalely

cotrodied by the same party or parties both befiee and afier the businzss combination, and that compol is not transitosy. Basiness combmations invelving entities or businesses

Lnder comman cortrol shall be accosnted Jor asing e pooding of interests method. The assets and Lnkslibes of the combining entities are rellected @ their earrying amosnis,
X. Standards msued but nat yei effective

Ministry' of Corporate Alfairs CMCA™) notifies sew smndard or amesdments 6o e existing standards under Companies ¢ Indian Accounting Stndards) Rubes as issued Fom
time fo time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Compantes (Indsan Accounting Standards) Amendmen: Rules, 2023, spplicable from April 1, N33 a8 below

Ind AS | — Material accounting pelicles - The amendmznts mainky related to shiftmg of dvsclosune of orstwhile “significast scosunting pobcies™ in il notes ta the financial
statements i mateial accouting policy information requenng compasies 30 reftame their sccounting policies 10 make them more “entity gaecific. This amendiment aligns with
the “matenial™ concept strcsdy requined under Infernational Fisancial Reporting Stindards (IFRS) The Company docs not expect (his amendsment 1o have amy significant
impact on its finaneciel smbeamen).

Ind AS 8 — Definition of sccounting estinates - The smendments specify definition of ‘change 0 accounting estimane’ replaced with the definition of *sccounting
eatimnten’ The Campany doos ael expect this amendment to have my significant mpect ca it fnanscis] talement,

lad AS 12~ Imcome taves — Anmus’ Improvements to bnd AS (2021} - The amendment carifies that in coses of ranesctions where equal amounts of assots and liabilities are
recognised an initinl recognation,, fee inital recognition exemption does mal apply. Ala, [Fa pary bas not yet recognised deferved tax asiet and deferred tax lability on righe-
ofuse wzets and lease lisbikties o hs recognised defored tax wmeet or deferred wx Rahility on et basis, that compary shall have 1o recogiss deferred tax aasets and deforred
tax linkslities on gross basis hased on the carrying amount of dght-of-use aesets and lase lishilitios evisting o the bagisming of | April 2022, The Company does net expeet this
ananvdment 13 lave any @pedficant impact on its finanacial stitement.
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Spice Money Limited (CIN-UT72900DL2000PLC104989)

Regd off- 622, 6th Floor,DLF Tower,Jasola District centre, New Delhi- 110025
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

4. Right of Use Assets

Particulars

Building

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 01 April 2021

181.64

Additions
Discard/Transfer

Balance as at 31 March 2022

181.64

Additions
Discard/Transfer

181.64

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Amortisation

Balance as ai 01 April 2021

121.09

Depreciation
DiscardTransler

60.55

Balance as at 31 March 2022

181.64

Depreciation
Discard Transfer

181.64

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Net carrving amount

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023




Spice Money Limited (CIN-UT2900DL2000F LC 104989)

Regd off- 622, 6th Floor,DLF Tower.Jasola District centre, New Delhi - 110025
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Rs, in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

5. Dither intangible nsseis

i In-house
Dariisnkive Computer developed Total Intangible assets
sofiware - under development
Software

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at (1 Auril 2021 462.51 1, 318.16 1, 7810, 6via 81.47
Additions 180 47 §3.27 ?
Transfer - - - 81.47
Balance as at 31 March 2022 464.31 1,399.63 1.563.94 -
Additions 215.89 - 275.89 452.4%
Transfer 12512 - 125.12 225,89
Balance as at 31 March 2023 S65.08 1,399.63 1,964.71 216.58
Amoriisation
Balunce as at 01 April 2021 290.13 T61.44 1,051.57 .
Amontisation B1.35 21256 28191 5
Transfer - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 351,48 954,00 133548 -
Amaortisation 62,72 41563 478,35
Transfer 125.12 - 125.12
Balance as at 31 March 2013 289.08 1,399.63 1,688.71 -
MNet carrying amount
As at 31 March 2022 112,83 415.63 528.46 -
As at 31 March 2023 276.00 - 276.00 226.58

Note: Intangible assets under development includes manpewer and other cost incurred for various intermally developed software.

As at 31 March 2023

Intangible assets under development < | year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than J vears Total
Projects in progress 216,58 - - - 226.58

Projects temporarily suspended

As atl 31 March 2022

Intangihle assets under development < | year 1-2 vears 2.3 years More than J years Tutal
Proj in Progress ol = L= = =

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Mote: There were no temporarily suspended projects andfor no time overrun andfor cost overrun for the intangible assets under development as at
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,




Spere Maney | imited (CTR0T 00001 20001 10490}

Regd off- 620, tth Flosr D0LF Toser Lriols Disries comtr, New Dol - 110012
Motes 1ot Rnancial sistonents as 38 and fer the year eaded 30 March 2013
(R, in Lk wndess othersise stated)

Finmnvinl asses

o, of Bhaits e of Share
i, Inwwtrensy o af 3 March s ai 21 Mareh A ai 31 March 2023 Aiab 3 March 3032
— D3 bl

Pon-cirien awrent N mrmnd Cusrrosn

il lnvpvimenmiin spdiy wsivemesis
U nau e bnvesimenis

Investment in subsidiary carvied sl eost wnless otherwise staied
Kimann Lapens Fivele Lsidal (B vale B 18) 211, MHE 20, i o 1T . 2700 -

b in Felaw o baial rawried &t can s besi
sihsrmbee damed
Vikasni Fintoch Privase Limited (loce value Rs. 100 L] A 800 nan “ aan f
E-ath Travel Solviioas Pivale Limaed (fee valee Ra 10 & HH 5 8H) i 3 (X0 =
& 1T 90 - &ITE T -

Agpregais valw of engusted Proestment g_p_?i re [%3/% -

Aygrepste valin of sropiras] ;e L% O - 63769 -
hggrepibe umeuni of EnpairEen; @ wles of heedmesd g

7. Lanws

A3 w31 March 2003 Rsat 3 March 012
HNwoumgn)  Curresl pleggurent  Quovest
Loy o refaned pary

Censnlered good-Seomal - - = ;
Ceaniderad good Ussocurad - - . &
Laems whech b significan] s m crala el - - -
Lowrs-credil impared - - . .
Less Loss allesvarce - = - -

* Lo nnd rescnabla arc nes-corvaticg [nmcial sssrs whad genome a el o vaiabie imeio Har il Company vl il repavstie i cssh Uhe camyag value may
b affecad by charges i the orecon sl of the cunierpmbes

& (hher Nasncial avels
As st 31 March 2023 Aaat ¥

Heveivalle lrmh rlased pary covssdered gosd
Bggmuhle ag s Lacting - PRl & 3w
Mgcrivalrbe fram sebased pany osvsisberod dueulefis
i it devicd el

Socurr [upuai RILEH FRE i T
Rpcavable meansl lickeing . 1423
Inlewst acaund os fned deposits - Tizwd . KT U3
Eoceivplie o sexvermens of 9 vce T EChE - 1.235m . IARLAY
Frueld Depodats widh bunks heving semaining mstunty of moe then 12 ponis &8 [ B R . 1B ZR =
Beprivable frun ahes comidered doulbifsl

Rocaivalila spanst ticketag - - ixre

BT 1AM [T 2.0Rg, T

L - Lags Allowance for dosbifal racenable = = 4 FRL]
Toesl Lot L5197 LMo LiT431

¥ Inchdes Duposis of e 31036 likhe 431 March 2022 Ha MNib lisn marbed agamat ovendeall fncibles taken fon baks ageim: Sl depasits

B, Mon ourvent Eny nseeis {mel)

A5 mi 31 March 2013 Asar 3| March 2021

MNos-garrent Currmi Nar-curren Current
Addvance incoma-tm (el of proviios o imles) Ly - 138491 -
KT . 1,334 %1 .




Spice Mawey Limited (C18-17 XML D080 L 104989
Rewil off- 632, 84h Flear.DHLF Tewer.dnsoln Dwteict ormire, Mew Dol - | 10015
Nalrs b the Fnancisl ssvivments as st and Tor e year meed 31 Narch 2021
Ha. in lakks unbess scherwise sated

18, Dhederred By insels

Ressgrined ideferred tan nssets and lishilines
A Deforeed tx assets mil labaktss s aenbutabls w e flinsisg

Dnefervedd tas sty Dheferredd tas (Babikities) Pt delierwed ban avseti{Bahiliios)
Asnl At Anar A wl Asmi A mi
S1-Mlar-13 M-Mar-22 3= i M Alar-23

Frospeaty, plast and suuignscses, Right of Use S18 40 [LER - - 61840 1645

Ansars gl imtanggible asseis. lonpact of differonce

% i g T

W Tisasn pevissiad ia ek

Impact of diMerence in tax base wnd book b of = . [ ] 3232} (075} 1242)

Comgedioely Conversbls Peeli Shares

Prosvisios i ESOF 3.1 LIEEZ ] il ] 103,54

Provesions for smiployer banadis 8150 L] L) - - Tivar [LEE

Provesons for loss allowanees 1R a7 . . 1k 5 T

Rz Biabibry

by (hamms _ FLF L] EEL) {004} {04%) FLE] 149

Defered tnn sseis’ (labiBiies) [FUNT] ey [T (ELST) 1,003 FITFED

AT cregha svitiomont T - SELTT £ - Jei7 ey

ek sifiron tes, peiiee/ ik iy | KILTE — S Loy .

A Myvpmnt in wmporsry SNSRI

T hargedi rwalised ) Ercagnised
Halanee 2 a8 i el b Bl vty nsther  Midasex st CMATEdACrdied  Recopnbedin  Balance
ol 1im prodil e beox ol sl
duitang Fumily jra
nE
i M- [ i - 5

Progserty, plant and agaipments, Right of Use (69 61} B6.AT . . 16 44 il RIRAD
Avmets and imimngible mees Inpmet of difference

Betwin o depiceiatien and deprecation)

armTisFion recognised in books

Tavrsivmsnt @ fur value doosgh prodln ar lisa & 5 ;- 2 i3

Prowssn G ESO08 13112 LTET] . (¥ Ez) [LIET] REE] - L1E]
Provezmns s employee benefiis 13483 1153 L3N - LLE L) Lt anm H1Ed
Frovsuens kv loss allowances (LR P& 1] - - et 1 - ik
Lapes Bishiby ILE ] f18.%0)

Uhabsorhed depreciatian

Impact of differ=nce in tax base md book salug of - B TT - {7.39) (LR nmw S (7%
Commlsan|y Converfible Preference Shares

xhr itas 26 0. - - 4 e 5 - i
MAT credit anttloments a0 (X 43y - ST [ - 07

11051 TTENET (157) ITEEAT! 7T I S T TR T 1)

et dleleanedd pan avwen

Dischssed im tha balance ibedd as Fallaws) As ail As il

L Alblapch M2l

Tofersed 1an wwaets L4017 T

Difiorsad tax linbilities 0T §2.97

Delereed tax asiets (net) V) TN

Dhschasezil an g stasisvinsst of oot aid boss as s YT ]

#nuﬂm‘bﬂ-m; Thar o [T :;I!.li}

Income sas it of 001 118} AL 57}
Deferred tan assets fne) 12559 T

In pursunace w sectan |15BAA of sie Incense T Act, 1960 nodified by Govemment of lidia heough Tamtion Laws { Ansndinert) Act 2019, the Company as an irmevaable opsion of shifling o
b (mx rake Bemegaing oter 1 imonfives. The Company has nal axereised this optien durisg the vew and consivs fe recogniss the tmces o0 incank: Tor year ended 319 March 1020 a5 por the
vl 1ns e as e evpainy os baring Bacd SAAT Crehis I a i the regarting date amil whish is ehgibie for uilisaten o lnancial yesr 012526 0 202839 As per the projections the
Company axgects to recavar or adjust the MAT Credt withn prescibed pesod. The Company wall nesew tve sbuve positlon o esch repeming dae




Spice Mosey Limbiod (CTN-1T 290001, HIDOPLE 14989
[Regal aff- 622, Bih Flaar INLF Tower Jassla District centre, Mew Delhi - 1 50025
Mabes lo Bie Baaacial statements o sl and ke ihe year ended 31 March 2623

[ M4, in Lakhs uniess stberwise sizted
1L e assels
sl 11 March 2021 Axai 31 Maris 2ik2
Dencmrreni Carreni - gL Curren)
Rertvabde fram rlsted party -comsiderad good
Ad=mo o redated pariies ¥ - ol . ki
Heisivalbile fram rolsted pacty -considersd doubelul
Addraes @ relabed garies - . . N
Reeerivable frem sthor -cousicerod good
Capiial Arhmmses ' [Tt .
Preaakd renl ‘ - . [T
Prepasd expermses® - Siwed - ATH a8
Inpat Tax Crodi Receivable: . i 52 - FLLET]
(T pand mndder Pooiest . L2 - 10.2%
Aalvimiies & soivioe providens - 2,704} * LI
Dthier Bexen nids < I . .5
Peetwivabils Fram aibors - consldersd dsubihil
Adianoes b seviee rovden - e A ]
- AT RART 120868
Lesss - Lioes Alvwance for dioubtfal . - - (.95
ol B TR BEET 1M
* Por Helated Pariy Trmsacyinns, Refes Mote Mo 57
I Inwentarie
Ad a3 March Asat M
—bp __ Nlarch MIX
Stick-m-trade (a1 vt ol cest and nel reahsable val) —ME] IR
Tatud

Thicodt ol mvimbaries fecogmsnd an am e poree mehades s 20,73 bikh (ler the vear sdied 51 Mandy 2927 - Bx. 4 Lakbs) i respect of wite-downs of mveabany s net realissble vadue.

13, Trade reedvable:
As wi 31 March As wn N
Recencatibes from relased panties irefer note 37) nmn Aaa 51
Kicen ghise fiom clhers EFE] AT9150
[EITES]) 44708
Eilledd
Sevuied consderiel prod
Ui, gorsidersd pood LLER S 2 )03
Ve, Crodnt Impasd i 19038
1 L,
Trovison for Expecied Creadil Loises _  th0e lwos
Total Biled R T BT
Lulsdied
Secured conuudarad pead 3 .
Unsecursd. comsidered gnad 1524 0 pRCIE L]
3 i sigadfienst risk & " 4 :
Unsocured, Credii imspmired : :
[RA LY FRETE ]
Teavsan for Expecad Credie Lomes ; 3
Tote Uabiber e e LT

- v iradie e dhoe o raated parties esher soceally or sy wiih aey oaber pereen Mo amy trada oo sthar recenable are das from i or P e s reapostvoly m which sy
drecior is apanner, & Srecto) or § mendor

- Tende wcrivables are son-misrel beasng snd nre geserally on tanm of 0 13 98 deve and payesants are recaved in cail

= Rueler Note M. 41 for detsds ol Provieon for Expectad Credil Loses

Trade Reccivable [Biled) Agring — .
As ai M March 2023 Dutsianding for flowing periods from dvt date of '
I—_ Lews than b | 6 menths- 1 _u'-_nﬁmu

Particulars e .
Mol Due rear - 1 year I J year Tasal

Trade reesivables

T | 1L i7 [T} = g z Twian
- [T 5AAT . . - [T




Spive Meney Limited (C1%-0 7200000 2000FLE 14589y

Regl ot 6.2, 6t Floor,DLF Tower Jails District cewire, Yew Delhi - 110025
Neies b0 e fivsncal asemints as ad and for the yesr maded 31 Mardh 021
AHE. 8 ik ubes othe e staied)

s b 31 Manch 2023 ol Trem d o |
Mare i 3
[ 1=
LT Fear I- X year Tatnl
[RITET] ELIY [T [ - - FRIEE
- 15.87 way [T r r T |
[T 1A 148 1.78 - - LA
TAsmdl Mares Al
—_—id iarch $E
Balance widh banks
On current acsounts i [IFEIR]] [N
on hasd 6T -
Umsh on hand 0% . [
Yol A g
- Bt depruasts me inade G v ying posods of Brveren one day and thrse pomhs, depending on 15 comlh req) ol the Company, and dan nleest of Be espectvg shail-
terrs deporii saian
¥ lechadun s 6 86 latha (31 March 2003 R, 1144 Labivn} relating b vendor liabslity
W fill figoee = By 60 {Previoes vewHa M54}
15, Dhber baak balwsces
Azt 3 Marek Auat 51
Dreposiss with semainmg masirity of s thon 12 moni ETET] TR
Drepoa bedd ai securty agmass borowingsbak penisiee ensmmag sty of les than 52 monhs) o 14,175 6@ TS0 L4
Tatsl —tAETEEY RSP

T Inchedes Leponts ol Ks. T8 5K Likha (31 Manch 203 33 77 lnkha) pledged agsing) ivaie of bank gusmnies, deposss of Ry, 12717 ks 011 March 2022 Rs 197 47 bkhd bm marked
aganst e pakd imsiremest basivess, deposts of Bs 10,800 73 kb (3] March 2002 Rs 830 b0 likha) ben muisbid mgansl on erdsalh odtes iaken Som tenki agens fed Seposite depen
of B 33803 lakhe (1) March 222: ks, Nil akis) ben skt agaies BOPS business, depasiis of Rs 25 laki {31 Misch Hi2k: Bs. 35 lakhs) lien marked sganst s of corporase eradil
‘Bard

LR, Fapubiy Share caplist

w30 Mlareh o wi A

— 2003 Misech JEJ2
Amthurised share casital
0,000,000 (i e 81, 202 600, 0000, o Eiguity shares of Ha |0 gach 000,00 000000
A8, 000,000 (an at Vs 31, 2022 40,000, (i Cummvelatien Compabinry Conveinible Prefoecics Shmes (CCCFS) of B 10 exch 4,000,151 4000 00
Tatul [T [T
lasised ihare capital
Ordmary Shres: HL.002975 (s i March 11, 2001 $4,002,575) Equety shoses of Rs. 10 sach Fully caled up A 3 4400 30
Clas B Shates 8,69 000 (as 38 Mach 11, 1001 B69050) Equity shares of Rs. 10 gach -ty calied up “nw 2690
Currulaive Compalsory © Preferencs Shares (COCPS]: 3900, 00,000 (38 a1 Slarch 31, 028 Mil) Bod v of Bs 10 each fully
sallaf us " “
Taul 44a] 0 [YTiET])
& Comulative Compuliory Converpiide Prefersrcs Shares covers the equty nd debi ol the sl b prefe thares The sopiily component i mckided i (itar Eqaity and
Tahility componeni is nchsded in Tnteei-hoanay leans ond bormowiegs (eelar note | 7 ssd 10 reapectivels )
Bubscnbeed and Dailty paid sharve capital
Chidinary Shares 44,002, %79 (s ot Mlarch 10 JO15 #1000 573) Equity sharesof Bs. 10 sach 480038 4010
Smbarrihed hut ned Fally paid share capiial
Clasi B Shares 869000, Rs 2 called up each (25 m March 31, 2022 869,030, Rx | clled up each) Exgeity shares of By 1) anch * 1 WA
Less Calls i Aaveirs §e5 -

L L]

* Dharing the year, Second Cal of Ba. 145 per share, Rs. | sowands sominal value nd Rs. 245 towands shares presiium, ssountmg io Bs. 39 99 Lakhs ws callal ws or 869,000 Clas B ares
iom I} Decowbar 022 The Compory has not secaved any call money as al veporing daie

A Reconcilingon of the number o shares and ammmi oustanding 1 B beginming and at theend of (he reporting yesr:

Dtdhig‘- Eharcs
As it 3 March Asak i1 As 2l 3 March Asal 3
FLEE] Mapeh 320 Ik Mlaach BOEL
Do siShave B dsiskdy _ Ke of Share  Ba is;lakiy
Lgqury siare outstanding ai fie begnnisg of the v &A1 575 A0 [ETETNE) 4. ME1E
Lsgquiy saares imued denng ohe vear = - 30 HW LENES

By shatis cutstanding w10 v o e your —ABITE GOSN A




Spice Money Limitsd 0CIN-UTIS00DLI008PLE 104989
Rl sfT- 622, 6sh Moo, DLF TowerJasols District centee, Mew Dellal - | 10025
Moles b the inancial statemenis ax at and lor the year eaded 30 Margh 202)

1M1, in Lakhe mrles: nfherwise stuied)
Llaza B Shawes
Al § Maich A i 3 Awai ¥ Mlarch ETTTRT
E Maoch 2023 L March 033
ST R i [
Exqaily shues outsimdang 31 the bagnng of e rea [XT) [T 1.60.000
Equily shares oulstmdng al the begmping of the vear- fist coll smeum ¥ . A
Esqaily shpres outstanding al ihe end od e vear !w w !ﬂ_“.-
B. Righis. pref anad Arii ra euguily shores

« e Comprey has ino classes of sjuey sans @ ldon

Dolimary shprgs Thens shares have apa vakis of Bs. B0 par share. AN cquily shares raal cqually itk sopad o divaberads snd shave i the compiny’s residval sssiss on wisdng ap. The equry
shares are enidledt in receive dnidead s doclired feom e o ime. The veeing rights of mn srdinary chaseloldes #s o poll (ol oo show of handa) arg in praporion o e pand v cxgans
whare Viotme swhis canmod be evercised in ressec of shares sa whidh my eall or ather wimn presenily payshibs b not been aid

Class ¥ shares: Eack Cliss B Shaes shall bave o o vabes 0/ s 10 and is isoed o a premsivms of Be. 24 57 Thiss sguty shares of the Company ssal camry diflsneniml vobeg mghts vin g v
Orcingy Shares, sccardugly, evers 5 Class B Shwes will have ome wle in proportios o smeun! paed on ciss 1) egesty share Aay Bactan i be derazarded for the puposs of such compnialios
o wnimg pewer. Winh the excepiion of volisg nights, fos all other maiters the Class 1 shares shall rask pan pasos i he ofdinery shires

cal Call st S of Siliicription Price. Amowni (Be)  Naminal Vs Whare

Cin Applcatinn = 1) 1.1z [ [5 7]

Fir Call 13 D N b 1.1 LR 1] .23

Secad Call | 3 M3 b J1as 4m 144

Thind ol finel il 13D 20 e 114 560 1461
Mt 1060 1451

. Equity shares hekd by malding Cenpany
Dt of siyisty shars i by the Company, cquaty shares habd by its bobirg Conpuny arc m beiow:

As it 31 March Axar;

Partbcolars
e - —— ELE) Bagh RRRE
43 31ATS {3 March H2T 434,51 475) equity shares [EIINE] [ETINE]
Tatal P ST
[, Peslls of sharehelders holing mare tat 3% shaees in the Compasy

— ——,
Hame ol e sharcieshler Az al 31 Marck 20L% Aswt 31 March 20022

AT aTe [T PR [TEEN

. W shares have bem slloded withyet paymeni of cash oo by way of o shares duning the penod ol five vews mmediels preceding the hakinos sheet daie

L Bharchohliags of Promyssry ot thpwna of March 2 2033

Mo, uf Share %6 of Hulding o, !w o of Holgng
DCiipics Techan'opies Limaed (Hleldisg Conpam ) [ETRINEE] ] 4, A1AT [T
AT

Mumbersal % of Tutsl %lhmge  Dumbervol o Tomd ¢ vewE

Promair ¥
L. - Sharrs Shares during the yesr Shares Shares clartog W
0l DiCirspice Technelogses Limited (Fahing Company ) IR A3 - AMALAT ) ——a
17, Dher sty
An w31 March As 31
= — 03 Mgech 203
Socuriies [emmm 335167 LT
Share bay back ressrve aooui ELEE &) LTRN. T
Capsal Reserve 420 &5y 2968,
Share based pavomnl Reacove 4nd 93 EREETH
Rataned cienags LA LATTRY
Equiy Partiomal ar iy Conversble Pral: Shais FEIR &) BT
Tactal ARSEIY £ I O
Ad a3 Murch Asat 31
— March BOGE
Sereivies gresiom
Dipening halance 138062 ERLEE S
A Premum on Cles B oquity vhares wised .29 1068
Add - Fremum on Shures undir ESOF s:heme - pE LT
Addc Veansferad Poor shate tased Faymen| reserve Or shares sseed usder EXOF schome . 4421
Leas Cally i Asrgars 20.28 5
Clasng halanes FXLTFT Ajaia
Share buy back reserve secaiing
Opening balwme ILET e
Addtiors duneg the vear - 2

Chosing, haliie LAY Jriay




Spice Meney Limited (CIN-UT IOBLINOPLE 104589
Reogd ofT- 21, s Floor OLF Teser Jasels Dirict comive, New Dol - 11025
Moo i e Minancis] walomeats s ol and Ger the year eaded 31 Margh 102

[, in Lokl neles olhersise staled)
Capital Reserve
Oipenng balasce HFLAS) [EECES]
Lee Prewmm peid on cancellaion of shaes = -
Clesmg balanes (RN (4205
Shoare based paymesi Resorye
Uhpanimg bodnsca LR a5
At dursy heyes | 3T [ETET]
Lisn: Shanet beimal dorip ha v - L8425
Lima: Lapwal ESOP sransfiried vo retained vormengs — [0
Cleting halanco [LLET] RL-K
Mecalava saimbngs
Oipemarg balance: [Er:8 1] 19535
Ponlit/ {loas) o e vem {inchdmg otler wmorehenive incoss) (L] L¥I 5
Add: Lopeed ESOPs transfemed Mo Shasg hased payemt Resave (nel ol lash - [LAE I
Clinny balance LI LETTA
Expuity Fostios of Conpeend Fiaanzial Inyumens | Hefer mlgno 1) pLE 1] FETY 1]
1% e lnancal Babdilies

Aa w31 March 3655 ARal 3] Manch 20d

Man-turren Carreny - et Curremi

Pyt 1 bl ol pastogs (rafien sobs no. 17} * - ETH - (N
Payalée is sdheri
Enislores ickaol panable (irclades salery pavable and vamable compemaioni®® % Wi a2 - LT Rt
Capinal cradion . 19 .38
Fayable an withernsent o sevvioe imssioes = 1AT9.19 x 1,245 31
Tatal : BN SR

* Rapeesenis paryablee rebmed v curen aocows balmoe of R |59 Lakd (31 March 2022 | 1) Lall and its 2708 |sibs |31 March Z0Z2 - Mib pavable o Ihgispice Techmology Limiled
inwards Incoms Tey rafind For A 200 T-08 sooved i bank accommi of Spics Moagy |Lassind

** For Rabied Paty Transactians, Ralin Mae Ma 37

1%, Deber labiliees
A az 31 March 2123 At 31 March
_ Nen-curmemi Carmeni Nan-currong
Deposies lom cudomers 4717 E - FFIE]
Idglarvnd revesue |Relier Modz no. 51) - - - G
Ay Bois cuslomme s IBENN - IL9LE &S
Prepasl balande of agens (apaini lsuie ramtances) = TH IS0 - Bddiw 44
Rimhitary duss payahls : LErET ] = e 49
37,17 I9055,15 - Fil LI NE
Rk, Prrvi iy
Anai 31 Wiarch 2023 Awal J1 Slarch IO
[t epreng L= L Nuw- ot Curress
Prnviibnn fas s plig e he sl
Giratty {Rusler Mote 35) AL an 07 107
T ompensated lbsenoes prpft] LU 17161 54 RS
Peosisian e GET wider dispuls . 036 = 126
Tousl BIEET] (LX) £ TR LN
L Hasrawings
Maturity W At 31 Mareh 7023 Aiat 31 Slarch TOH
L TTTETE T Cureent Mowcwrrent  Cwr'end
Secirel
Crverdnlt okies (rom hanky ® O demiansd = FALIRE] - LEILE ]
Dl Fortion of Compulsarily Convendile Preference Shaes = 3 2FTER . -
3.HTA8 718443 ETTE] [ETER

¥ In he corrent year and prevines yeor, overdvad) Tacdities. fram hark: pee secusedd by pladge af frosd deposn wih basds The (eedites corriad mn serage e al 6 30% s o 51 SMarch 2033
131 March 1022 £ B¥%)

* T Company has Bhami Rill Pasmat astherization fom Reserve Bank of lsda (B} mnd in rospec ol thesanc, tho Comgany sceds 1o munisin & sa wed af s (8,000 |nkles i prer RO
woaris. Aeeoadmple, en 3 Maecs T2 the Roaed of direcions of the Compasy considenal ssed approved isue of 13800008 Caml stk Compubury Convetils Frofeonca theses (C0OCPS) @
par havng face vilue ol Bs 10 per share aggrepsting 10 R 3,500 [skhs on rghi isae basi 1o exieng shisghaldars in e peopostion ol e exiting sharshalding. The lepm & conditons ol
ese shared me i fnbons

= Cosvertible mio equiy shases sithn ) vews or @ the dime of lnd moe eserciee { o o emal patecs whichevo w aniber

- Crsrversaon will ke o et vpluslion ol the sveal Of ¢omnersion.

~ T shares will b mos- particpating in iatwe.

- Tt s Conpusory Usariils Frok Shwes have 350 dividond

The Bawrd ol Derecices of Difimpics Techanlogion Lawited (1aling Crmspanys os 11 March 2001 ossglersd md approved tha nlisios of fosbs be o assosnd ol sscesding s 5,900 lsbhs bs
wiy of mvestmenl in ¥% CUCPS of Ra 10 each alfered by the Casspam

The alleimsmi of adove CCPS bad been dose on 25 May 2021 ond monsy raoewed i espect of e s had heon sdpeatod agamst the bsan ropymmt




Spice Money Limited (C1% 07 2RAIFLISLL aasy

el ol 812, 6th Flowr, DLF Towsrdasola Districy cenire, Now el - | 9023
Mwies b e Fnamscial statements oy ol sl Gar the yeas cosided 31 Slacch 2023
(Bs bn Lakles indess uiberwise stebnd)

21 Trande payalibes
Aswl 3 March A 3
0z Sharch 2022
Trmde puyables 1o slated pastics (rler moe 37§ 1242 6330
Timde panvablesdrefer ste 46 for devar's of dea 1o mecro s small onierprises )
“Chatstassding dus o Miceo Braarpraes & Spall Eniapraes 85 16 KT &6
- Chatstandiny duss of [ther than Micns Erterprises & Seall Frsenises | #a7 b 1,161 52
et Malance [RITRT] [RIRLE)

= [ by rmvere and svall emierposes have been delermmed (o the exient wsch pariies have been dentilizd by the Company om e basis of mErmation collecied {Relor mobe no 46

Traibe Payable agring
As it 51 March 2423
[ Particulars [i] bang for FoBowing periods from due date of payment
Cailleed Mot Dow | Vel - 2 yunr Sty | Trrihmd Total
T - TS
] s W = T - S50
[REEL] [EEE] 451 1% [ - 1 &F | &7 B2
[ERLIT Tl (R[] [T E (KT La3108
fuBowimg pevinds from due date of pyment
bl o e ol -3 year “-:.::" Tunsl
108 iy “51 &l B - - "W HG |
[KHE] TN KR : [ERL] P Trad ks
187195 EINN] 18832 - [FET] - [ETErT)




Sgicr Muney Limised (C1%- U7 290000, 2601 1959
Regil off- &22, tili Flesr.DLF Towerdasola Distried cemive, New Delli - 10028
Wotes i il Fnnmcinl stalements o ol sl for the venr cnded 51 Varch 2003

{Bs, e Lakivs anless sthevrwiae simied)
" Forfhe year  For(he yrar
3. Bevmue lnvmn operalines eniled 51 Mareh  emded 31
S 1L S
Sale af Adrtime aeed Troded Cooils
A JLSv ™ 1094300
Tralad Gousds of Py devicas smad others 1647 kR 1 #5355
0,20387 QR
Rales Hendering ol Servees
Feilech amvces RE 702 IR 2840 14
services - Trvd 1,805, 19 1AIRA7
Writken back of uisclaimed balances 136 85 15143
A0 B3E, 16 4344
Taial [ERTHT
A e b o ol il LUENT all perf dlipmivons are fur be P 'llw-llﬂl-:n!-rrmwhnaliﬂﬂurmh: ik fremm miw fiw
wmﬂﬂdpﬂmnﬂwlmhw&dyfhcfmhnqwﬂndﬁn ical & ilabile urdr paragraph 120 of lad A% 115 and & I wath The sdditional daw with

Mllmﬂﬂwﬂﬂ_llﬂdwiwm“‘dlﬂlh babasco sheut date. Further, mlhllllr-l nFﬂwmw;ﬁmlrmhhmup‘mh
MnFﬁmﬂMMnﬁ.ﬂmm ol maiornl rewgects, dbere are no elmmenis of tnnasclion price which bme not heon mcluded in e revenue recognimac! in (s Faamia
Sisipmen: Alwo, there it o diffsence between ke canimct prca and the revéme Foss comrct vaih codomers

al For conirect Habwbties, Redor et na 19

b The above oo beww unised ai possl of D
&) Paymmani mwhwm-mﬁmhmﬂw‘mhlhlh :—qicli.mvlplhr-.'t-bll'llm Camsdening the s, the Compay ciecis b i pactical enpadent o
grronin BIDAS 115 "R from woils *, heno: therg are no sl F Ay i wrk the

A Revense nom the sabe of ihe produces s serices (s wisin Inda and are manly thicagh -mmhlﬂ
&1 Fin gomnsct sssets and halinces, Seler note na 1

2o Uhlier iwvnmie
Emgaa d an fimancial and noa fimamcral sssets -Carrisd o smostised conl
Park digsts L4e 3 L]
lter cnapatmie ks = ia
I'ptvmee tmw reshiincd inT =
Others n&7 R
Remtal Incomse 413 )3
el gam on sale of Propenty, Mlast & Equipmen oiT A8
Laahilines o bongeer requed, winben hack k] 4235
115018 10887
25 Perchas: of irsded geds
Prarchaie of Ao sad Tradod Goodi 51845 50 50,0008
Total SLES 5 B AL
o Change im inventories of irndal peods
Inveniony at the heginring of the yeir e w2zl
less: Capitabsasion from spesing iveniorny 1356 Min )
Lss: mvestory o Lhe end ol the pear 414 £2 IRI9
Total change in mveninies of iraded peods —pid® (63 IH)
27 Bervier & Comosission Uhirges
Dunestice Momey Transfor Chasges 1013 3 286303
Commissan and otber chages 2119992 0,324.13
TR ] 13,187,246
1% Emphiyee benefits capreses
SBalaner, wmges and homay K Tad 61 L AR
Comtriniton to provden wnd othor finds Lh: B ] A B0
Cimtuity expenme | Refor Mote 15} 14447 06,79
Share hased payment expense | Refi Mote V) alr 151 %4
Sl weblaie exponies 14,49 |08
6270
L 1 masfersed o Ieanabie Assets ender Developime LI =
LI¥T.82 6,217,010
2% Fmarce costs
rilgrau o
Raarsvngs Tia? A
Dt poction of CCPS AT k]
Leuse Lighiley - LR
Stabatary dues [182] 0.1}
Tatal METT 7T




Spior Money Linsibed (U IN-17 2900 L2NAC1B93%)

Ergd off- 422, &il Floor, LF Tower Jasols Destiicn centre, Mew Dellil - | B0LS
Wates e the Nnascial satonsnis as sl amil For ihe year emded 31 March 2023
{Ha in Lakhs wnlews sdhe raise siated |

M1, Ieegweaiation and smastizatien rpense

For the year Far the year
endel 1 March wmdad 31

— 2N Macch 2022
Depmecantion on propeny, plan and conpmien (Sole 3y 15343 [TEAT]
Deprecimion on right of ase avsets | Motg 1) o G5
Amoribien on miangble sseis {Hote 5) ATRAS mied

—  ENILTE LISLER
3, Dibser exponses
Hurit 424.77 11293
Rtes ard 1aves 4356 136
[[EFETE L] e
e
= Computers and [quepments 15452 TR T
- [haers G
Flocaniciny sl waser 2653 1150
Adlveriising and sibes prowanion Mia0 1R 14
Broderage and discounts X 158
Travellg md comeyance L2347 6
Commmmication costs &3 156 59
Legal am professional fess 1207 I, ma6T
Derectors’ sitmy fees 1ok T
Pavrment 1o sudilod | Kefor defails below) 21110 s
Wiehiche numming and rmainshincs LTI g
Allonsanes fon expecied credin kisses s 4182
Dicniics e 4200
adl dubis/advanses written off * 058 1341
Penakios ¥ 427 T4
Canparate sacial resposshiling dwirs 48,00 £00
Miscellaneous expenses. i 5 1A

6,517 8RR 4, 1enng

Less: Transkerved i [ntangible Assets ander Development I - - T

— BSR4 Je0ns

A livvohves penalry of e 851031 March 2002 R4 5 Lakb) hnposed For violaton of mles asd rogadatians of IRCTC with respeet 1o sharing accew credentists on Travol Vnion's websie' mobile
applicaties

vy pevalty ol B Ml (1] March 337 B 204 Labh) smposs] B wai of aderpaate aicrmy speount belasog o the exvoni of the vabas of cutstading PP oaed paysionts ds o
merckants wader Paywent and Seitlement Symtems A, 2007 (PSS Asi)

Iveobves peralty of R 278 Lakh (31 Manch 2002 Rx Nil) seqosed for Spice Money spests asing persanal 10 rathes thas commencial 10 fie [RCTC Geket boobing

Ievenlves interest of R | 4% Lakh (31 March 2022 s Nilh imposed ender GST Aot for FY 200 7-18, 201 8- 19 and 2009.20

* T diows st includa the previous yesr privissons fon doubefl debis which have b wadion o7 is bad debls dunng the pear amoustieg 12 Rs 89 57 Lakha {31 Masch 2022 Ws %6l) This
amoiini bas boon bakon asan expens’ dodaction  ecoee s compaaton i yes mdicg 3 Mad 2021

A, Payment bn suditer (sorlsling inws)

A it
Startutoey Audt foe 1180 A
Tax audet fee 250 100
Limived review Q0 750
I sther capacity:-
Ui sorvices | perlifcabon fees) 015 150
Heitnlsa'semenl of expeses m4% (AL}

— D0 i




Sypivy Mossy Liswived {CIN-1IT 290000 20008 LC10008%)

Hogd off- 022, bth Floan BLEF Tewerdmols District centee, New Dl - |28
Motes de the Tesncicl sialomonts as al snd Tor the year smded 31 Mareh 2023

R, b Labhs mibees o berw bie sbited)

B Detads of USK expeaditnre

The Company is requaned bo spest 2% of average et profit of last thee precsding fnascial yeirs lowasds Comporate Socal Reipoasibility (CSR) actwatics usder sestion 135 of the Companies
Acl, 2013 mnl mecordimgy the Compayy has spest Bs 480 bikhs (Prevsons Year B 600 lakba) dunng the vew and the same & recognised in Simemont of Profit sl Lo Nesessary detafs

are desclosed bebow

Far the vear Fur the year
eniled 3 March  easled 31

) Uiiods arvosing peguaned 10 be spent by the Company dureg ihe year
b} Mmoo sl i ihe yoan

) Ul st /coquistion ol any el

) O perposes otber thas (10 above

el Shartfall mt the ead of yenr

| Total of previous yest sharfall

&) Remwm for shomiall

1) Mo o CSK st

u! Dietails of related party transactionsn relation o C5H
Enperditere as per rebevent decouming Standard

AL Iax Expenses

T major cmpososts of meome (i oxpense Bor the years ended 51 Wanch 2008 snd 31 Masch 2022 wre

A Ammwnl ieoognisod dn grolil sed lus:
Curvent Incwawr Tax,

Carrent taw

At ment i respect of meome tas of prevanes seas
Deferred tax:

Relatng 1o erginason and reversal of iemoornry differences

Income s expemse reparted in the datement of profit or liss

elered tas inspuct ca component of ollier pempromive moome (C1)
He-messmarement of defined beneli ebiligatmni
Teial inswme tax benelil recogmissd i oilber comprebemsive incsme

B. Beewecdatisn of ofective lax mis

Prosfiti basa ) for the year

Incosea tax using the domesin tax me (O 34.9040%, Y29 1 2%)

Rt change impact on defemed 1ax

Hon deductile expenes

Aduasiment in peapect of cuimen msome lax of earlier yean

MAT Credn takendidsed during the year relaved to garlier year

Ll o marcbage sl educalion oo en MAT creilil unlsed iy 5e voar

Ineoms tax cifest on EROF provisson daimed in preveins year's Ingome Tax Rdum

Ineone bax eifeel om Dividend payment an OCCFS
Cithers

33 Camponents of atbser comprebensive imcome (401
Re-meamrenent gains (louses ) on defived benefit plans
I mcsrres fa emipact

M Evrnong per share | EFS)

Far the year Far the year
ended 31 March  ended 31
o] March 2031

= Iz

(LELy [LLE-EH

(5T nris
_mam wes
(E1.83) 157

2153) FLij

Far the vear Far the year
wadal 31 March embed 31

[LEER LT 1,771
[287.53) LT
(37.74) -
1157 44 55
{161% ias54)
{18%) 1T6H
- 9 14)
R .
e .
(142) (168)
Gsin — wesi
(A2 4%) 1
RS (25T
(Aiad) BAS

Uzsic 115 amounts are caloulated by deading the profnd loss) for the year atribolabile 10 equty boklers of the Company by the weighted aversge sember of equity sheres outstanding durisg the

yuar

Diberted EI"S amonunts ane cakoulabed by dividing the profiu lossh sierbutable bo eqany hokders (ifler adganting impact oo prodt of dehitive potsmtal equity ihares) by the ageresats of weghted
average mamber of equily slercs vutstmding durig the year asd the wegghied averago menber of wuiy shaves (s vkl b isssed on comvarsion of all the distive gotential equity shives oto

cipmly sbwres

Tha follawing reilacts the income and grare deta used wn the baike il dilived EPY compurations

Profid Lessh siribinable i equity halders of #e Company
Prafia atinibutabie 1o esuity halders for basic earnings

Weaglted sverape minshes of ety sharos outstandieg ot the heginning of the year
Clags B- 8,690,000 shares lued on |5 Dee 2020, Called B | 726 of shan valus s 34 52 {ncluding pressum Rs 24 52)
Class fi- 8,689,000 shares lssued on |3 Dec 2021, Called Hs 1726 of share vahes Ki 34 52 {nckdmy peesmum fs 24 52|

Sl inoued dusieg e year

Weighted average e af copuily shuares finge at che ened sl ihe year for bask KPS

Podaniiad FROMY vesied ac ab yosr erd ssssd Tor o comsderation

Weighted aversge heer sl epuily shares B 8 the end sl the yenr for dilutive EPS

Basic eamings per share of K. 10 each { in Hs)
Dkt earings per share of Be. i0 each [ i Rs.)*

For the year Forth yoar
ended 3 March ended 31
— iy MahI0il

(B1765) 13903
7.4 1 1

4,400,575 4.3,51 475

43452 A% 452
41,442 5811

- 5,509,008
AALATATR 408,60, 368
40,B05 0,97
4,41,30, 683 4,368,880, 405
L&) Lea
11,40 La

* Since there is 8 boss Bae the vear ended Mireh 11, 2027, effiec of poteniial squiy shares oo BPS isom considere i dhative and besce dilated EPS i3 same as Base EPS




Spce Muney Limaited (CEN-U 720000 2001 LC 1MTED)

Regd off 421 &6th Floor,LF Tower.domals District contre, New Delhi - 110025
Motes be the Bnancial stasoments s st sl for the year ended 31 March 2023
(B, im Lakhs unbess otherwise staded)

35, Employee banefits
A Defined Comiribuitas Plas
Tharing the yoar, the company hos recogmised the fullowing amounts in saivmsos of Profi & Lis:
Far ihe year Far the year
emiled 31 March 2083 pmded 31 March
Emplayers coreribution 1o providert amd other find ) A EETET
L F N | ¥ ]

b, Diefined Benefit Plans

The: Comnpasry havve a defined beaehit gratuity plan. The gmisty plan & govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1572, Every employee who his complesed five vears or more of
service get: o granty on departure st 13 diys salary (Bist deawn sabary ) foe each completed year of service or part thereol'in excess of six months. The level of benelits pravided
depends om the member’s lengih of service and saliry &t the time of departuse,

The follewing sables summiarises the conmponzans of ne benefit sxponse reoogisod in e statament of profit or less and amounts recognissd in the balance oot for the plms:

{i) Linbiliry for defined bencfit obligation ss s Balance sheot date:

As i 30 March I3 As at 31 March 2022

Present vatee of cbligaton of Gratuty plan ARTAT inm
Fasir value of Plan assets 2 =
Mset limbility recognised in balasce sheet ARN4T 321,78
{if) Campaents of defi d bemefit cont revagnised in fhe daiement of profit ssd loss under Employes bensfit Exp
Far the year Fuar the year
ended 31 March 3023 enaded 31 March
Currail service cust P IR 76,50
Imberest cost om benefn obligsion nmn N
Comribetion pakl fom e Fumd . :
Expected rovsm on plan sssers - -
Mt benelit cxposse 144,47 T, 19
iy, Chamges in the present value of he defined besefin oldigation are as follows:
For the year For the year
ended 31 March 2025 ended 31 March
Thpering Befined benehit obligation TIETE R
Acgpuesition adpesiment on are-group tansler of cmplayees & ke
Imierest oo 2315 2020
Current service cost 121.12 76,55
Bengfis paikd (41 26) (60 BE)
Te-masaremens | geiny liss 62, 48 .27
Closing defined bewe i obligation AT FFEN
(i) Chnges i e fabr value of plan ssets arc as Ballows :
Fuar the year For the year
ended 31 March 2023 ended 31 Murch
Cipenimg fair value of plan el -
Expreied] renam % m
B fits paid 3
Avtuaidal gaielos ) o plan asacts -
Cleshang fadr valise af plan axsct - .
The Convyany has oo plan st agaiost above lishiliey foe defimed benef oblipaion,
vk The principal asumphons ssed bn determaning gratuity for the Company s plans are shevws belos:
Fur il year Far tha yenr
endenl 31 March 2023 ended 31 March
1oiz
Dhiscound rate T.36% TIE%
Funary safury mormases EO0FG B
Ratirement Age (Y ears) SR Yomn 5 Years
Mdorialiny ries inclimner of provision o desabiliny 100 ol LALLM
Ages Withalrawal Rase %
Upaes 30 yeearm 15% 1%
From 31 1o 4 years 5% 1%
Above 44 vears 5% 5%
Monality rate 1005 ol ALK
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Mustes ko the Rnuncial ststveaces as ot oml for the yewr embed 31 March 2023
(Rs im Lakhs unless oibwrvise stated )

Far the yenr eaded 11 March 2023
Funere Salary Incrense

Fensithiry bovel 0 3% [erease 059 Decreme  0.9% Icrease 0. 3% Decieme
impact an defined henefin obpation - pain lossy (140 14,84 14,68 (M7
{vii) A quaniiintive senbtiyity analysis fior shgnificant sssumpion i at 31 March 2012 is us shown bebow:
For the yenr ended 31 Murch 2012 Far the year ended 31 March 2022
Diseournt Rase ___Future Salary Increase
Benstnaty level 115% Increase 0.5% Decreme 0. 5% Increase 0. 5% Decrense
liegpixct ot delined benefit abbgasion - gain(as) {934 934 072 9.31)

The sersstivity anabyses above have boen detenmned based on o method thae extrapolates the mmpact on defined benefit obligation ns n resuilt of ressonable changes i key
nasumipbions cccurring ab the end of the reporting pemod.

Avili} Ve following payments are expecied te muhe under defined benefit plan in fisture vears:

Girntuity
Asat Asar

3 March 2003 31 March 2012
Watken the next 12 months (next anaasl repoiting peniod) ¥ azor
Between I-3 Years 189,47 124,12
Between 34 years um 2407
Hevond 6 years 215-15-3I|I 14252
ot expecied pavments 4394 ___Inm

The averags remining working bfie of the defined benefit plan obligation of the end of the reporting period is 25,57 years (31 March 2002 75,79 vemrs).




Spice Money Limited (CIN-U72900DL2000PLC104989)

Regd off- 622, 6th Floor,DLF Tower,Jasola District centre, New Delhi - 110025
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

36. Commitments and contingencies

(a) Commitments
Estimated amount of contraets remaining to be exccuted on capital account and not provided for;

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Estimated value of contracts (net of advances)
remaining to be executed on capital aceount 200.62 290.95
and not provided for.

{b) Contingent liabilities

Particulars Asat 31 March 2023 | Asat 31 March 2022

Income Tax
In respect of assessment year 2018-19, the Assessing Officer has made 14.89 14.89
disallowance of Rs 69.01 lakhs to the assessed income in the order of
assessment passed w's 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 and tax thereon
adjusted againnst the Income Tax Refund claimed in ITR and refunded the
balance amount of Rs 7.10 lakhs. The Company has filed an appeal beforee
the Commissioner of Income-Tax (Appeals) on 7 April 2021,
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Spice Money Limited (CIN-UTZ900DL2000PLCI04989)
Regd ofl- 622, 6th Floor,DLF Tower.dasala District centre, New Delhi - 110025
Notes to the inancial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

40. Fair values

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments;

As at 31 March 2023

Patieniary Carrying amount Fair Value
Financial asscts FYTFL FYOCl Amaortised Cost
=Loans (Non-current) - =
“Other Anancial assets (Mon=-Current) 2.047.07 & 2.M7.07
“Trade receivables 1.910.33 - 1.910.33
-Cash amd cash equivalent 11,440.56 E [ 1.440.56
-Bank balances other than above 1157199 - 21.577.99
-Loans (Cument) 1.01 - 1.0
=Other financial assets (Current) 1.519.78 - 1.519.78
Total financial assets 3849614 - _Jﬁﬁ.ﬁ
Fimancial liabilities
-Lease liabilities (Non-current) = a
<Bormowing (Mon-curnent) 3,297 88 - -
<Borrowing (Current) 7.154.53 - T.154.53
-Trade payables 1,934,958 - 1.934.98
-Lease liabilitics (Current) - 2
-Other financial liabilities {Cument) 2. 190.60 = 2, 190,60
Totnl financiul liabilitics 14,577.99 = 11.280.11

: As at 31 March 2022

Fasficulnn Carrying amount Fair Value
Financial assets I'PL FYOCH Amaortised Cost
-Loans (Mon-current ) 960 - .60
“Oither financial nssets (Mon-Curnent) 194039 - 194039
=Tade weoeivables 4.247.03 - 4,247.03
-(zsh and cash equivalent 10,337.1% - 10,337.1%8
-Bank halances other than above 1R, 691.04 5 18.691.04
-Loans (Current) .00 - 3.00
=Chher financial assets {(Current) 2.074.31 - 2.074.31
Total financial assets ITI0LES : :
Financial lialilities
=Lesse labilities (Mon-curment) - - -
-Borrowing (Mon-current) 3, IBR.31 - 3,188.31
-Borrowing (Current) 531530 - 5.15.30
=Trude payables 1.312.68 - 1.312.68
=Lease liabilities (Current) - -
-(ther financial labilities (Cuarrent) 2,351.43 - 2,351.43
Total fnancial liabilitics 12,167.72 = 12,167.72
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41 Fair valus Miranchy
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Spice Moncy Limited (CIN-U72000DL2000PLC 104989)

Regd off- 622, 6ih Floor DLF Towerdasola District centre, Sew Delhi - 1125
MNotes to the linancial statements as al and Gor the year ended 31 March 2023
(K< in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

42, Finnacial risk management ohjectives and policies

The Company’s principal financinl labilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, The main parpose of these Gancial Tahilities is to fnance
and suppart the operations of the Company, The Company's principal financial assels include trade receivables, cosh and cash equivaleats, bank bolnces,
leans and other financial assels that derive directly from its operations. The Compary investment in subsiciary conpanies massural ot oo,

The Compuny is exposed o market risk, eredit rigk and louidity risk. The Company's senior management advises on financial risks and the apprapie
financial risk povernmes famework. The scaior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financisl risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives,

Market risk

Market risk 15 the risk thal the fair value of future cash fBows of a fnancial instrument will Muctsate because of changes in magket prices. Market risk
eompriscs three types ol risk: curency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. such s equity price sk and commodity nisk, Financial insruments
affected by market risk inchice Ians and borsowings, deposits. Company is nol affected by commodity rigk and currency risk.

Interest rafe risk
Inberest ratie risk is the rick that the fair value or future cash flows ofa lrancial insteument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Company’s exposure o the risk of changes in market mierest rates relates primarily o the Company's shor-term debi obligatioas with Moating interest
rates and loan wdvanced by Company o feflow subsidiacies and o body corporate,

The Senior Management of the Company nanages its interest rate risk by having o balanced porifolio of fiscd and variable re bomowings.

Interest rate seositivity

The fiotlowing table demonstrates the sensitivity o a reasomably possible change fn interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected, with all ofher
varinbles held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is alfected through the impact on loating rase horowings. present mie is FOR interest rte plos
1% ( 31 March 3123 FIIR interest rate plis %), the impact of change in mée & 5s follows:

In the current year, interest rate sensitivity is calealited on borroswing and interest bearing deposits from customers while in the previos year it was
caloulnted on borrowing. The impact of change in interest rate is given below:-

Increasefdeerease in - Incrense/{Decrease) in profic

basis poinis before tnx
31 March 2023 50 {35.77)
3577
31 Marchk 2022 0 {26.58)
.58

Equity price risk

The Company's Fvestment in ualisted equity securities are mainly in subsidiary congpanies which is susceptible 1w impairment st as applicadle. The
Company does not engage in active trading of equity instruments. The Board of Directors of Company reviews and approves all equity investment
decisions,

her riskfinherent risk

The Company operates in Fnancial scrvices secior and mansges very high volume of wansactiors, which have the inhereni risk of funds management in
comparison o sther services secior.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterpany will not meet iis obligations under a financial instrument or customer coatmcl, leading 1o financial loss, The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and fiom its financing sctivities, including Loans, deposits
with banks and financial institutions and other linancal indroments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is mamged by the Company’s established credil policy, procedurncs and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credii
quality of o customers is nssessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecand and individual credit limits sre defised in accordance with this assessment
and also based upon sgreement/iterms with respective customers. Cutstanding customer receivables sre regularly menitored

Al impminment analyss is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivibles are
grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impaimment collectively. The Company does not hold collmeral 35 security. The Company evalustes
the concentration of risk with respect 1o trade receivables as low, as its costomers are located in several jrsdictions and isdustries and operte in largely
independent markeds.

The Compaury hus used g practical expedient and analysed the recoverable amount of the receivables on an individual basis, The Company provide for
expected ks allowance for linaneial sssets based on historical credit loss experience and adjustments for forward looking information’s.

The foliewing table provides information aboal exposure g credit risk and expecied coedit lss Bt trade receivables for cusiomers for the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 1022 :

As on 31032023

Wenghted- Lnss

Cross Carrying Credit-

Hs, Im Lakhs o ;::u;r! Aln:mr. Inpaired
Mot Due 304,91 % - Mo
I- S0 darys 134,70 e BUR Mo
91-180 days 4.9 92% 31 No
180-270 days I7.82 02% 385 Mo
271-365 days 1959 Is% 062 Mo
More than 365 diys - 0% = No

661,32 L]




Spice Money Limited (CIN-UT290000 2H0OPLC 104959)

Regd off- 622, 6th FloorINLF TowerJasola Disirict centre, Mew Delhi - 11625
Notes to the fnancial statements as al and for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(R im Lakhs waless otherwise stated)

As on 31.83.2022

Weighted-  Loss

Rs In Lakhs [‘“’1‘ CNTIE ey Ao CEE
miaunl 1 R . Impaired
ol Due [NICET (1Y - Mo
1- 00 diays 68,17 w761 Mo
150 |lrl:m 3128 23% 23 Mo
181270 s 1.26 21% 0.2 Mo
271-365 days 0.14 0% 014 No
More than 363 days .78 | (1% 1.78 Mo
212143 19,05

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of receivables
For the vear ended 31 For the vear ended 31

March 2013 March 2022
Baiance at beginning of the vear 1905 20
Add: Provided during the year 025 1685
Less: Reversals of provision 221 =
Less: Amounts written off - 5
Ralance ot the end of the yeor [T ) 19.05

Liggmidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shorage of funds using a liguidity plasning tool,

Thee Company's ehjective is to maintain a balance belween continuity of funding and fexibility through the wse of bill discounting Ficility. The Company

assessed (he concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debi and concluded i 10 be low. The Company has sccess to a sulficient variaty of
sources of lunding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolied over with existing lenders,

The table bedow summarises the maturity profile of the Company”s linancial liabilities hased on conractial undiscounted payments.

Less thand 3o 12

Un demand marnths momihs 1o 5 years Tudul
As at 3 March 2023
Borrowing | Non-curmeat ) - - - 3300000 3.300.00
Borrowing T154.53 - - - T.154.53
Trnde payables . | 934 98 8 = 193498
Lease liahility (corrent and non-current ) - - - E
Oither financial liabilities - 2, 190,60 = - 2.1590.60
T154.53 T.125.50 - 000 14.580.11
As at 31 March 2022
Borrowing { Mon-current ) - - - 130000 330000
Borrawing 331530 - - - 531530
Trade payables - 1,312,68 - = 1.312.68
Lease linbility (camrrent amd pos-currem} - - - &
Other financial lishilities - 235143 - - 23501 .41
51530 366411 - JJ0000 120

Facessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a numbser of counterparties are engaged in similar business activitics, or aciivities In the same geographical region, of hove
cconomic features that would cause their abilily o meet coniractual obligations v be similacly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance o developments affecting a particular inchisiry,

In order to avoul excessive concentrasions of risk, the Compamy's policics and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a
diversified portfolio. kdentified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and mansged accordingly,

Collateral

The Company bas pledged part of its shori-term deposits with banks a8 margin money against issue of hank guarantees in order to fulfil the collateral
requirements for ils various contracts and for pre paid instrument business. The fair values of the shorttenm deposits pledped were Rs. TR S8 Takhs (31
March 2012; 35,77 kakhs) pledped against wae of hank geamntecs, deposits of Re. 237,72 Inkhs (31 March 2022: Bs, 107.53 lakhs) lien marked agninsi
pre paid instrument basiness, deposits of Rs, H 481,73 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs, 863054 lokhs) lien marked against overdrall facilies taken from
banks against fived deposits. deposits of s, 235803 akhs (31 March 2022 Rs. Nil lakhs) Hen marked agninst BBPS business, deposas of /s, 25 (akhs
(31 March 2022 R 25 lakhs) lien marked pgainst issee ol corporate credd card, Banks have obligations to return the deposits (o the Company upon
selilement of the obligntions under the contracts. There are no other significant kerms and conditions associated with the use of collateral
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A4, Capital management

For the purpase of the Company's capetal management, capstal includes issued equity capial, share preminm and oll other equity reserves attributnble 10 the sguity holders al the
parent, The primary objective of the Compary's capital management is o maximise the shareholder value,

The Company manages its copitnl structun and makes adyustmenis in ight of changes in economic conditons and the requiremans of the inancial covenants. To maintaia or adjust
the capial structure, the Company sy adjist the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital 1o sharcholders o issue rew shanes. The Company moritors capital using a
gearing ratio, which 15 nel debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is te keep the gearing ratio bess than 75% The Campany incldes within net deba,
interest bearing loans and borrosangs bess cash and cush equivalents

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 1022

s, s,
Borrowing {other than conventible preference shanzs) 705453 531530
Canvertible preferance sheres (Refer Mete 21) 3,297 48 3, 188.31
Less; carih amd cash oquivalens (11,440 56) (10,357, 18)
et Debt (A (TRH.15) (1.E3357)
Eruity share capital 440899 4,408,949
ther equity 4,856 13 5, 40406
Total equity (B) U365, 12 9,813.05
Tetal Equity and Net Debt (A+B) #,276,97 7,979.48
Gearing Rutlo il il

In arder to achieve this overall shicctive, the Company's capital management. amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants sttached 1o the mierest-bearing
Inans and borrowings that define capital structuse requirements Rresches in meeting the linancial covenants would permit the bank 1o immedately call kans and bormowings. There
have been no hreaches in the financiol covenants of any interest-bearmg loans and borrewsng in the ourment period.

AL Croup information

Informztion abeut subsidiaries, associates and joint vestare
The consolidited finandal statements of the Group includes subsidinies and associated listed i the able below:

; Principal place of Proporiion of awnership Method of aceounting Type of
SRS Ay oy busitess Axat 31 March 2023 As st 31 March 2022 of investment Investment
Kimaan Exports Private Limied Indhn 10600 10x0.00% Cost Subsidiary
Vikasni Fintech Provate Limied India 49,0084 43.00% Coal Feflow subsidiary
E-arth Travel Solutions Privaie Limited ki 313.33% 33 33% Cost Felow subsidiary

45, Disciosures required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Details of Investiments made { AL cost )

For the year ended 31 March 2023
Investments made  Investment sold doring

Farticulars Openiag investments =~ p Closing investments
kaimaan Exports Private Limised 627600 - 6 270, 00
Vikasni Fintech Private Limited 0.4% . - 049
L-arth Travel Solutions Private Limited .50 . . 0,50
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Particabirs - Iovestments made  Investment sold during P R—

= during the vear the year
Fimaan Exporis Privaie Limied 6,276,00 . . 276 00
Vikazni Fintech Privine Limited - .51 ..oz 040
E-arth Travel Solutons Private Limited 4+ 050 - 0.50
Detail of Loan
Far the vear emded 31 March 2023
Lowm glven during the  Loan received back

FParticulars Opening Laoan year Pakpe ey Closing Loan
E-wrth Travel Solutions Private Limited -
For the vear ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Opening Losn Loan given during the  Laan received hack Closing Loan

year during the year
E-uath Travel Solutions Private Limited E ([ 143000 z
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Details of dues to micro enterprises or small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 as identified hy

46
the management of company
Particulars As ut j!ll{-lllﬂl'h!lm’:h Asat 31 March
- The amounts remaming unpaid to micro and smell suppliers as at the end ol - B
ihe year
- Principal 5516 B7.86
- Interest Mil Mil
- The amount of imterest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the smaunts of the payment made to the supplier beyond Mil Mil
the appointed day during each accounting year
< The amouni of micrest duc and payable for e period (where ihe
principal has been paid but micrest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not Nil il
paid)
- The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of S
mlnth& year, and il ™il
= The amount of [urthcr mierca duc and payable cven i ME suceeeding
year, uniil such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid )
i the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible Nl Ml
expenditure under section 23
47, Leases

L Company as a lessee
The Company has incurred Rs 424,77 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs. 119,78 Lakhs) towards

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Company hos incurred e 141.23 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs, 5314 Lakhs) towards
lapaops taken on short-lerm lesse,

Il. Company as a lessor

The Company was not required 1o make any adjustments on transition to Ind AS 116 for leases in which it acts as a lessor,
except for a sub-lease, The Company accounted for its leases in accordance with Ind AS 116 from the date of initial
application. The Company does not have any significant impast on secount of sub-lease on the application of this standard,

The Company has recognised rent income under the head of other income as follows.

(Amoant in Rs, Lakhs)
For the Period  For the year ended
ended 31 March 31 March 2022

Rent received during the year 423 2915

The annual lease rental to be receved by the Company during non-cancellable period is Mil.
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A8, Financinl Katlos

The mjor financisl muios of the Company computed a5 per finaneial gatemen) prepared under Ind AS are disclosed helow along with the reasons for vanance:

Asnt 31 Axat 31
March 2023 March 2022
Ratin Sumeritor Denomminatar Ratin Bt ool Virlance | Keason for Variance
Curren) Hatie Current Assels Curient Liabalities L0 1,02 =1 %
Dhebe couily mtio Towal Dbt Sharehsdder's 113 0.87 30t Increase miporly due o higher debts and decrease |
| Equity retained carmings due 1o boas incumed by the Company
| Dbt ~s=rvice covernge mibo Eamings available for |Debt Service AT 020 5% Decrease majorly due 1o loss incurred by the Company
rvige i averdzal FI .
Returmn om equity ratw Nt Profitstos after | Ave Sharcholder's {1106) 014 L4 Diecrease mayorly due w0 loss ineumed by the Company .
taxes guiy
Inwentory ermonver ratio Cost of poods sold or | Avg lnventory 118 1.70 a3-|'11Th: Company is now  continuosly - monitecing l:]
siles inventory tummver cyele and the sceordingly muintsi
the mventory leading w e balanced Tiventory umover]
fimi jm the Y 2013-33
Return on Capital emiployed Eaming before inlerest| Avg. Capital {03 0.1 =0 23 Decreanse muorly due 10 loss incumed by the Company,
Enployed
Trade receivable turnover rutio Mer Credin Sabes Mg Acoounts 30,09 55.24 =4 5%a{ Dwe 1o decrease in trade receivables.
Receivable
Trmde pavable turmover iatio Met Crendit Purchases | Avg, Trade Pavables 5222 247 -28%| Incrense in Trade Pasubies
Met capetal lmover ratio Mt Sales Avg. Working 1660 T 10537 53| ue 1o Increase in Revenue from Opertions.
Capital
MNP Ratio Bk Pmﬁfb'lg MNet Sales {01} 0.0l = |4 3% D inagorly due 1o loss incuried by the Company,
Hetum en ipvestments ’iIMm FoR Averpe FOR 005 .06 -1 ]‘q
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A, Sipgnidfeant acconnting fulipements, estimates and assom pdions

The prepantion of the Company s separate finsncial stabements requarcs management o make judgemans, = ainel pions that aiTecl
the reportied amours of evemics, expenses, assets and liabilies, snd the acoompanying disclosures, and the disclosune of comingent labiliies,
Unceriasinty about sese asswmiptions and estimates could resubt in puscomies that require » material adjustimen 1o the carmying emoun! of assels o
liabilivies affecied i future peniods,

A} Taxes

The Company reoognizes MAT credit asailable as an asset only 10 the event that there is convineing evidence that the Company respective
companics in the Company which kas roognised MAT cacdt will pay normal moeome tax during the specified penod (e ihe period G which
MAT credit i ol kved 10 be corried fomwand

The tax assets of Ws 26,07 Lakhs (31 Mareh 2022 Rs 52777 Lokhs) recoznised by the Company oz ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under’ Delirred
Tax wisets'in respect of MAT payment for carlier years, represents that porion of MAT Dinhility which can be recoversd and et ofT in subsagsent
vesrs hased on the provisioss of Section 115144 of the Ireome Tax Act, 1961 The masagement  bassd on the present trand of profitability and
algs the Future profitability projections. is of the view thi there would be sufficiert taxable income in forescenble future, which will enable the
Company b ulilize MAT credit asseis,

Difierred tan assets are recogmscd for unused tax losses i the extent that it is probable that wable profic will be avadiable againa wisch the
kosses can be utibsed. Significant managensent judiemont 5 recained (o detenming the amount of deforred tx assets that can be recopmised. based
wpon the |ikely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with Teture 1ax planning strlegie

e} Drelined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit grutuity plan and the present volue of the gratuty obligation are determincd wsing nctuarial valuasions, An
actuarial valuation invalves making vaniows assumptions that may differ fronvaciual developmenis m the Mumre. These include the desemmation
of the discount rate, Tutwe salary incresses awd monality roies. Due (o ibe complexities imvolved in the viluation and its long-tenm nature, a
defined benafit shligation is highly sersitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions ane reviewed ot éach reporting duse.

The parametes most subject i change i the discownt miz In determining the appeoprisse discount rate Tor plans opersted in India, the
management considers the inlerest rates of government bonds in currencies corsistent with e carrencies of (e post-smployment benefit
obl igtion,

L) Fair yalue measurement of financial instroments

When the fair values of financial agsete and financial labiliies recorded in the balance sheel esnnot be mensured based on gueted prices in aclive
muorkes, their fair value is messuscd wsing valuation technigques including the DCF model, The inputs (o these models are taken fiom obscrvalile
matkiets where possibie, but where this is not femsible, o degree of judgment is required in csablisking fir values. Judgments include
considkerations of inputs such as liguidity sk, credit sk and voliailite, Changes in assumplions sbout these faotons could affee! the seporied Gair
vatlwe of inancial instruments,

D) Intangible asset under development

The Comgpany capitelises intangible assst snder development for @ projeet in accordance with the secounting policy. Initial capitaliation of costs
is hased on management’s judgment thatl lechnalogical and economic feasbility is confirmed, wually when a pmduct development project has
renchied & defined milestone according to an established project management madel, In determining the smounts 1o be capitalised, management
miskies assuinptions wegarding the expecied futune cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applicd and the expecied period of benefils,

E} Useful lives of deprecmlie assels
The muanagement estimutes usefil lives and estimzted residusl valee of depreciahle assets bassd on techaical evaluation. These asumptions are
reviewed ol each reporting date

F) Provisiom and contingent liahility

O an ongaang hasis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and sther costingemeies. For contirgent losses that are conadered
probable, on estimated boss s recorded s an acenal in linancial ata Loss cantingencics that are corsidered possible are nol provided for
but disclosed a5 Contingent liabilitics in the financial statements. Contingencies the Dikelilood of which is emobe are ot disclosed in the
fincial stateancets. Gain comtmgencics we mel ieeognized uitil the contingency his been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

) Investment in equity instrumenis ol subsldinry companbes
During the year. the Company assessed the investment in equity instrament of subsidiary companies carried ot cost for impaimment esting
Dictailed analysis ks becn carried oul on the letare projections and the Company 1% confident that invesiments do nol requing any impaiomest,

Hp Allwwance for had and doubt{ul debis and advances

Trade recervables do mot carry any iferest and are stated o thesr amortised cost ss reduced by appropriate allowances For estimated imecoverable
ameunts. Individunl trade receivables ase written of 7 when wanagement deems them nol 1o be collectible, Impainment is made an the sxpected
credit kosses, which are the present value of the cash shofall over the expected life af the Ninanciol asscls

1} Share based payments i
Thi Comaany mexsures the cost of equity-seitled ransactions with emplovees wang Bladk Scholes model 10 determine the fir value of aptions
Fstimating fair value for shore-hased payment ransactions requires determinstion of the mast appropriate wluaton model, which is dependem
ort the berms and conditions relating to vesting of the grant. This edimase sls roguines determination of the most appropriote inpats 1o the
valustion mexdel including the expected life of the share sption, volatility and dividend vicdd and mokirg assumptions sbout them, The
msswmptions and models used for estimating fair valise for shise-based payment transactions are disclosed i Noie 39,
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) Lewse lsbiliy and Right of 1'se assets
mc""ﬂ'm‘lﬂmmuhihﬂupmwﬂldﬂ 116 dentificalion of o levse roquines
W‘mmmmuwmmmm_hummqmmm-ﬂlﬂh#m:

’-Th“-mh-mmnwmmnumwmm-&cmm;mmmn-
olpecton fren ity sharcholdery mmm—,mnmmmﬂmliuﬁ-mqr
Curpamiics. m Incha.

51 Eveeplional liems

3 RBI had imposed s penaky of s 100 Lakivs in FY 2021-22 for not maintasning net worth of Rs. 10,000 laki 43 sequised wder Payment asd
Setilemeni Sysiems Act, 20017, The Coempany bhed paid smoamt and charged bo Uhe stskement of Profit mnd lovs under excegtionel em

b Hmhm:-wnwmlmhhﬁiw Fived armgunt recoverad fruen the agent for we of
uﬂhﬂnﬁmw“mwuuﬂﬂlmhhmummﬁ—q has sesveried s conbial wvcr the dovices
lﬂmﬂhﬁ-MM#ﬂmﬂﬂhﬂnumﬂyﬂmmuwmmm
ANy

Hence, the Compairy has decided iy remove these devices Mnmh-ﬂl-'m.ﬂmﬂ’hmmﬁﬂﬂh ™05
Lkl of these devices as on March 31, 1023, Simibarty, camymg vabee of rolaved deferred sovemue of Re. 125 U8 Lakhs has alse been wrilien
hﬁﬂim--mﬂum}-hmummm;-msu.m '

nmwhmwhmnuhmmﬁmm
1) The Lonnpany has o (rensaction sndhos ouitsianding balance with coinpames snuck of wnder sectsan M8 ol the Conspanses Act, 3003 or
sectmn 560 of the Companies Act, Iﬂuﬂufﬂuhm-rmmmmm-u#h

njhpuuﬂl'h-hnﬁudu.nmwmtt‘mItmb-umm-hdull-u'!m
iwm-u.ﬁlidrumm.

) THWMMMM-\{IHM&W bank or finargial mﬂluumuqmm
hrmfmhuﬂiﬂﬂihn-ﬂnﬂlqmmmmutmmnu

¥ There o mo endisclosod moome under the tas asscxments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year endung March 31, 2025 and March 31
2022 whach needs 1 be recended m the books of 3 count

1) The Cornpany hes not imded of imesied in crypio cameny o wortual curreney dering (he curment of prevous vear

wiih Ubibation ol borrowed faeds and share poomien -

Al m%mummuﬂﬂwm:mm-m other porsonisl or entiydies), anclining foressn enlities
Thmermediarcs] wth the wsderiianding thai e lnermediary shall directly o indirerily bemd o 1mwe in ether persons o cotities sdeaificd i any

mara whitsoove hru-hﬁlhrh[‘mwmlﬂﬂmﬁhrhbumwmmnyu e lik e o6 v bchall of the
ultimate beneficaries.

h] The Compony has mot received any foned [roms any petsonds) or ity [mex), includieg Foreign cudites (Fambng Party) wish the undersnnding
{msaher reconded in writing or otherwise) tal the Coanpany shall directly or mmmmhmmummwmmu,
manner whatsacver by ot on behall of the Funding Farty (1ivinsase Denclicianes) o peovids omry guanssice, sooanty or (he like on hohall of the
almale beneficinrics

wmwmnmcmrmmmmwmmwmnmwh whach such bians werg
was taken

1) M| changes creation and satiflicion therenl sre reprtoned with ROC within the iy il

5 mmmummmmmm|mumhm Since these expesscs ane dwectly

associaied with the core basiness, socordnyly, in arder 10 give mare appropeist Ecsorilabon, The Comnpay“pas roclassriod pecyis veas
exponic, amasting Bx 41063 akh, 0 Service & Comrmizace changes o confonn currest yoar classification

s ot ot repoit of even date afached Fun and on bl of the Boaed uf Daccions )
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